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Company Profile 2 N4

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited was incorporated in 1988 by
eleven renowned corporations with a common vision of promoting the
widespread use of e-Commerce for trade facilitation in Hong Kong. Its
founding shareholders included two of the largest banks in Hong Kong,
two container terminal operators, an air cargo terminal operator and a
couple of important trade associations. The Hong Kong Government,
via the Financial Secretary Incorporated, became its largest single
shareholder in 1992. After years of phenomenal growth, it has become
a publicly listed company with shares traded on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 28 October 2005. As of today, TAL
Apparel Limited is the Company's largest single shareholder.

As a leading provider of e-commerce services for Hong Kong business
community, Tradelink has been providing Government Electronic Trading
services (GETS) for the trading community since 1997, initially under a
7-year exclusive franchise (1997-2003) and currently under a licence
till 2016. Over the years, by perfecting its infrastructure and developing
services that meet users' needs, Tradelink has earned the trust and
support of the trading community; enabling it to stand firmly as the
dominant player in the Business-to-Government e-commerce market.

By virtue of its solid foundation, Tradelink was appointed by the Hong
Kong Government in 2003 to develop and operate the Digital Trade
and Transportation Network (DTTN), as a state-of-the-art electronic
platform connecting stakeholders in the supply chain locally with their
overseas partners for document exchanges. In 2009, upon acquisition
by Tradelink, Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited (DTTNCo)
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tradelink and thereafter, has been
used as a strategic tool for Tradelink in developing Business-to-Business
e-commerce businesses in Hong Kong and the China Market.

In support of GETS business, Tradelink developed its own infrastructure
for providing digital certification services since 1996. In 2000, Tradelink
hived off its digital certification operations and set up a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited (Digi-Sign). As the
first commercial company granted status as a Recognized Certification
Authority (CA) in Hong Kong, Digi-Sign has been providing digital
certification services as its core business and subsequently extending to
other security solution business to cope with the rapid development and
growing popularity of online banking transactions.

In 2013, Tradelink set up a new wholly-owned subsidiary, Tradelink
E-Biz Secure Solutions Limited (TESS) to take over Digi-Sign's non-digital
certification related businesses. TESS specializes in the development and
provision of online security solutions and services.

Over the years, leveraging on its market leader position, excellent domain
knowledge and technical expertise, Tradelink have diversified beyond
its core business of providing the best and most comprehensive GETS
services to serve the Hong Kong trading community and successfully
expanded to other arenas, in particular its highly successful security
solutions businesses. While striving for sustainable growth and continued
development, Tradelink remains committed to its original task of servicing
the Hong Kong community and its clients.
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Financial Highlights B il &

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BE-Z—NF #HE_ZT—=F
+=—H=+-—H +=—A=+—~H
IHFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T M T
Turnover =E 2] 226,293 230,006
Profit from operations REHRF 83,646 96,105
Profit for the year A FERF 74,183 80,448
Profit attributable to: BT AR
Equity shareholders of the Company RRTREFEA 74,183 80,511
Non-controlling interest FEPEAR - (63)
Total assets BEEHAE 612,074 610,499
Net assets EEFE 377,128 372,956
Dividend per share (HK cents) EFRIRE GBI
Interim FHEARR S 3.6 4.0
Proposed final FORKRAIAR S 4.9 6.2
Proposed special BRI 2 3.7 -
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREF (GB4L)
Basic HK 9.3 10.4
Diluted e 9.3 10.2
Financial ratios Mgt =
Net profit margin (Note 1) S AR (HaEL) 32.8% 35.0%
Effective tax rate (Note 2) BEEBR(f72) 13.6% 13.9%
Current ratio (Note 3) TRENLL R (H773) 2.03 1.98
Quick ratio (Note 4) RENLL R (B 7E4) 2.03 1.98
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
R-ZE—IF RZE—=F
+=—A=t+—H +=-—A=+—~H
’000 ‘000
TR T
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares ERITRBZEER
As at 31 December Rt+t-—A=1+—H 793,041 790,290
Weighted average number of shares (basic) Rt A=t+—RAE8TLERen
outstanding ordinary shares at 31 December N S A B (FEAR) 789,335 768,495

Note 1 ~ Net profit margin = profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company/

turnover

Note 2 Effective tax rate = taxation/profit before taxation

Note 3 Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Note 4 Quick ratio = current assets minus inventory/current liabilities
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Turnover (HK$ million) % of Segment Turnover of Total Turnover
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Chairman’s Statement EFEREE

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry,
FNEEL

S.B.S., J.P. Chairman
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Chairman’s Statement = EHEE

Dear Shareholders,

The year, which opened with a lot of promise, turned cloudy in the latter part
of the year, with Europe and Japan weakening and oil prices sliding. Of more
direct concern to us was the slowdown in China’s growth and the uncertainties
surrounding the operating environment. As a result, we only managed to keep
operational performance steady during the year, with turnover slipping by
1.6%, to HK$226 million. With our costs increasing as we devoted resources
to developing our security solutions and E-cheque businesses and with
the decline in the value of the RMB causing a HK$5.4 million swing in our
profitability, operating profit slipped to HK$83.6 million.

The Group’s profit fell also because we took the opportunity of the windfall
from the HK$29.5 million write back of earlier impairments to our investment
in Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited (“DTTNCo”) that we
announced in November at the Company level to write down some of our less
performing PRC investments. Moreover, as the write back of the DTTNCo
impairment resulted from dedicated staff performances over a number of
years, the Board increased staff bonuses for the year to reward them. As a
result, profits attributable to shareholders for the year fell 8% to HK$74.2
million.

This decline in profit is not a matter of concern for the Group because from an
operational point of view, our 2014 performance was actually better than in
2013. If the exceptional items mentioned above were taken out of the equation
for comparison purposes, our profit for the year would have been some 10%
higher than 2013. Our performance during 2014 was, therefore, much more
robust than what the bottom line suggested.

| am particularly pleased that, as foreshadowed in my statement to
shareholders last year, our Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”)
business finally turned around during 2014 with a 3.3% increase in revenue,
the first increase since competition was introduced over a decade ago. As well,
our Digital Trade and Transportation Network (“DTTN”) and other trade-related
services also continued to perform, with DTTN revenue rising by nearly 20%
last year.

The Group’s weaker 2014 performance was caused mainly by a temporary dip
in the performance of our security solutions business. Digi-Sign Certification
Services Limited (“Digi-Sign”) revenue fell by nearly 30% because of the
slowdown in our security tokens services for our major bank customer as initial
demand became satisfied and because external factors over which we have no
control delayed our mobile wallet, mobile point-of-sale (“PoS”) and E-cheque
solutions. This revenue decline will only be temporary as | expect this business
segment to recover strongly in 2015 with our mobile wallet now launched in
Hong Kong and Taiwan, our mobile PoS ready for launch in the second half of
the year and with work on E-cheque commencing for a number of banks.

BMBMURR :

SEFBRTISITMER T EFRBMN R B ARG EEZ
BB THRMET—ARE  MPELEERUEMEER
BAEBAITEBRMEREELE - At - FARMERITE
BEEET  E¥EBNB1.6%28%226,000,0007T © HR
BB ABRRERRLERRRE T EEBSKAEFT
Ehn - ook AR EMERR KT TREAEES,400,000
TT v AR R E A 83,600,000T ©

REERFTREIMBREMIE T+ — AMSEHEEE 5 EHHE
#ABEM AR ([DTTNCo]) E AT A RER B RS AR EE
1 25 7 6 29,500,0007T + FARMURES 9 RIF R EHF EE
& o A - BREIEDTTNCoORERmABE TLF RS
NEE - ESSEMFRESICA FUESE - Flt - FAK
BRI T PE8% 2 5 #74,200,0007T °

REBHORN TREILAES - BIEEE/EER  B1M-
S-NENEBERBB T —=%F - W%k RSKIER
MERHE LB ASE - FRRNER-_F—=F5410% °
WHM T -MENEEBRE IRERAIE R -

ENMAAEFHERNBSEMER - FALEMENZ =
T-MERFEFE SRS ([GETS D EBENERFE -
WAIENN.3% @ —HUETZFASIABFARNE LR -
IS - RIFMBISE 58S B ([DTTN ) REME 518
BRAS TMEERIE M+ ZFEDTTNWAIE IIHFIT20% -

AEE T EXEREIZRARBMNR LRI R
EIFER TR - MEEFREREARAE(Digi-Sign 1) #
WATF#T30% - EREREIE AR REBRITEP
RERLFEBROVBFRCER R - HIVMISREERR
1% BONRE— L IE R E SO SMER R EBUR S E 7%
B REHEMREFXERAT REMER - HARAT
BEBLRME - BARMORBEFERECRELERGEH
H - RIOREIEER R EFBRERSF T EFiHEL - L
ZR|[ITNEFXETCHE - FABEP T -RFZX
BomesayReE -

Annual Report 2014 —Z—[QFF5R

5



Chairman’s Statement = EHEE

During the year, we also completed development work for our B2C platform,
iTeM, which forms part of our planned eco-system for the mobile wallet
project. Although we have only just started to recruit merchants and clients for
the platform, it has already attracted interest from a major credit card operator
in Hong Kong and the key mobile payment operator in Macau. Moreover, a
business partner in the PRC is keen to develop it as their cross-border E-market
platform for China. Discussions on the business arrangements and terms of
co-operation have commenced and we expect these to be completed during
the first quarter of 2015. This will enable iTeM to be launched formally during
the second half of the year.

In the China market, performance at our PRC associates recovered strongly,
contributing HK$6.5 million to our bottom line this year. We expect this
positive trend to continue as _F /G @4t fE SR ELE E B R A 7] (“U-Link”),
our 4th party logistics joint venture in Shanghai, has continued its rapid
development, with some 30,000 routes now on offer. It also recently launched
a logistics financing service, the first ever in China and possibly the world. The
service is popular amongst the small logistics service providers in the market
and is already attracting around 1,000 transactions per day. Discussions are
being held with a number of banks and financial institutions interested in
providing financing for the project. Such funding will allow the service to grow
exponentially during the coming year.

With our new B2C platform, our mobile wallet and mobile point of sale
solutions, related value added services by Tradelink E-Biz Secure Solutions
Limited (“TESS”), Digi-Sign’s security solutions for E-cheque and a continued
positive DTTN pipe line, | am confident of our prospects for 2015 and have
no hesitation in recommending another 100% payout of our distributable
profits for 2014. This means a final dividend of HK 4.9 cents per share, which,
together with the interim dividend of HK 3.6 cents, will give a total 2014
dividend of HK 8.5 cents.

The 2014 dividend is some 17% lower than 2013 partly because of the decline
in after tax profit explained above but mainly because of the difference between
profit attributable to shareholders and profit distributable to shareholders.
As a Hong Kong company, we are subject to the Hong Kong’s Companies
Ordinance which only allows us to distribute profits which have been received
by the Company. This means, for example, that our share of the profits of our
PRC associates, involving nearly HK$7 million for the current year, cannot
be distributed to shareholders unless and until it is actually received by us.
In the past, we have covered this difference from our distributable reserves.
However, after nearly 10 years of distributing 100% of attributable profits to
shareholders, our distributable reserves have finally run out and we are unable
to continue our previous practice, causing the apparent sharp drop in dividend
pay out to shareholders.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B 5BEFE 5 ERAR]
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Chairman’s Statement = EHEE

However, in addition to the proposed final dividend of HK 4.9 cents, | will also
be recommending a special dividend of HK 3.7 cents per share for 2014 as
we have no immediate need for the HK$30 million reserve gained from the
DTTNCo impairment write-back. This will bring total dividend per share for
2014 to HK 12.2 cents, an increase of nearly 20% over 2013.

As always, | would like to express my gratitude for the continued support of my
fellow board members and for the hard work of the staff during the past year.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SB.S., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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General

The year, which opened with a lot of promise as the US market made a steady
but sustained recovery, turned cloudy during the second half of the year
as Europe and Japan weakened, oil prices slid and Russia, and the rouble,
disintegrated. Closer to home, China’s growth slowed further while political
and policy risks ratcheted up a notch adding uncertainties to our operating
environment. As a result, the Group’s 2014 turnover dipped slightly, by 1.6%,
to HK$226 million.

The decline in our revenue was, however, not matched by lower costs. Our
2014 costs actually increased by 2% to HK$162.7 million as we put additional
resources into building our security solutions business and gearing up for
E-cheque. Staff costs in this segment increased by HK$3.3 million when
compared with a year ago. As well, the decline in the value of the RMB during
2014 caused a swing of HK$5.4 million in our balance sheet for the two years.
In addition, we took the opportunity of the windfall gained from the HK$29.5
million write-back of earlier impairments to our investment in DTTNCo, which
we announced last November, to write down, by HK$4.3 million, some of our
less performing PRC investments. The DTTNCo write-back also increased staff
bonus for the year by HK$2.8 million as the Board decided to reward staff
for their contribution to the write-back. This caused operating profit and net
profit for the year to slide by 13% to HK$84 million and 8% to HK$74 million
respectively.

The drop in net profit in 2014 is not a matter for concern as the exceptional
items mentioned above amounted to well over HK$15 million in total. Net
of these, and the exceptional HK$7 million income from the sale of our
Telstra Technology Services (Hong Kong) Limited stake last year, our 2014
performance was in fact over 10% stronger than 2013.

The main improvement in our operation was in our core GETS services. As
foreshadowed last year, we finally managed to reverse the persistent down
trend in revenue from this business segment with a 3.3% increase in revenue
during 2014. This is the first increase in our GETS revenue since competition
was introduced more than a decade ago. While we are targeting for a continued
improvement in 2015, much will depend on overall market conditions over
which we have little control and could be undermined by the loss of a major
client as a result of cut-throat competition. The loss of our Textiles Traders
Registration Scheme (“TTRS”) service which the Government terminated in
November 2014 will also mean a drop in income for this segment in 2015. We
are, however, committed to maintaining this upturn and will try our utmost to
achieve our 2015 target of a further increase.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B 5BEFE 5 ERAR]
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General (continued)

We are also pleased with the continued improvement at DTTN during the year.
Following the 50% gain in revenue in 2013, it recorded a further 20% increase
in 2014. This represents another major turnaround for the Group: from DTTN
recording a loss of nearly HK$15 million in 2009, the year we bought out the
other shareholders, to it becoming a profitable business with a star-studded
client list and a consistently strong pipeline of new projects. With the continued
improvement in profitability and a consistently strong pipeline, the Group was
able to write back HK$29.5 million of earlier impairments to our investment
in the subsidiary. Although this is not taken into the Group’s 2014 top/bottom
lines, it represents reserves which can be distributed to shareholders. Since
there is no immediate need for the cash, the Board will be recommending
at the forthcoming AGM distribution of the entire sum to shareholders as a
special dividend. This will add HK 3.7 cents to our proposed dividend for
2014.

Revenue from our other trade-related services, however, dipped slightly during
the year. This was due to a one-off cash receipt booked last year but not
repeated in 2014. Moreover, while the desirability of expanding activities in this
business segment is recognized, competing priorities, particularly for technical
resources, in other areas of activities have prevented the Group from devoting
resources into it for the time being. We were, therefore, unable to roll-out any
new value adding services in this area during the past year. To ensure our
ability to continue serving our large client base of SMEs, we will be reviewing
our resources during 2015 to enable us to roll out additional services.

The main decline in our 2014 operational performance was in our security
solutions business, where revenue slipped by some 30%, from HK$31.5
million to HK$22.5 million. This was caused by a number of factors, none
of which were performance-related. While we are naturally disappointed by
this, we are confident that the slippage is only temporary. By end 2014, three
banks in Hong Kong have launched our mobile wallet while the Taiwan Mobile
Payment Company also announced, on 30 December 2014, adoption of our
solution for the mobile payment platform that they are developing for the
Taiwan market. At the same time, certification of our mobile PoS by the major
credit cards is expected during the first half of 2015 while work on our E-cheque
solution has commenced for a number of banks. These, together with other
business opportunities that we are confident of, will ensure a solid recovery of
our security solutions business in 2015.

frit ()
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General (continued)

The 2014 results confirmed the wisdom of the Group’s effort to diversify
revenue streams. Growth and solid performances in particular business
segments compensated for temporary dips in revenue from other segments,
making the Group’s business more resilient to minor aberrations and
cyclical pressures. We will, therefore, continue our search for new business
opportunities to further diversify our operations.

As part of this, work on iTeM, our new B2C E-commerce platform, was
completed during 2014. Although it is still in the initial phase of merchant/
client recruitment, iTeM has already attracted interest from a number of
parties wanting to collaborate with us on this. The formal launch of iTeM is
expected for the second half of 2015 and represents the Group’s progression
from a sole B2G operation to a dual B2G/B2B business to a full-fledged B2G/
B2B/B2C operation. The successful launch of iTeM will open up a completely
new business area for the Group and will add further strength to our balance
sheet while other projects under development by the DTTN team will add 020
capabilities to our E-service offerings.

During the past year, uncertainties in the China market continued to affect
our activities there. Some projects were abandoned by clients whilst others
dragged their feet finalizing terms. As delays continued, we decided to desist
from pursuing them and concentrated on our collaboration with the Shenzhen
Air Transport Association (“SZATA”) to build a platform to connect the carriers,
cargo terminal operators and forwarders based at Shenzhen Po An Airport.
Development work on the platform commenced towards the end of 2014 and
is expected to be ready in Q3 2015. This collaboration has also opened up
other business opportunities with the airlines based in Shenzhen which we are
pursuing actively.

As forecasted last year, the performance of our PRC associates and joint
venture improved, contributing HK$6.5 million as our share of their profits
in 2014 as compared with a HK$2.6 million loss last year. With some of our
investments not performing to expectations, we decided to impair part of our
PRC investments. This affected our bottom line for the year by HK$4.3 million.
On the other hand, we are pleased with the rapid development of U-Link’s 4th
party logistics platform and have planned to invest a further RMB 4.4 million
in it to fund further expansion. This will increase our stake in U-Link slightly, to
26%.
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General (continued)

During the year, we finalized the arrangement in respect of the disposal of
our stake, at our original investment cost, in Pinggu, the logistics park outside
Beijing, to the controlling shareholder. In addition, our effort to dispose of
our stake in China International Data Systems Co., Ltd (“Guofurui”), although
suffering another minor setback, is continuing with the recent signing of a MoU
and non-disclosure agreement with another potential buyer.

To sum up, 2014 was in many respects a pivotal year for the Group. Our ability
to finally turn around our GETS business after over a decade of continual
decline and our success in consistently improving our DTTN activities
strengthened the foundation of the Group’s operations. The slowdown in our
security solutions business, while unfortunate, proved the added resilience of
our balance sheet to temporary dips in business sectors, validated our effort to
diversify the Group’s operations and convinced us of the need to persist with
the strategy. The completion of iTeM followed on this path and will, hopefully,
open up a completely new, and potentially lucrative, business for us. Moreover,
our successes, and setbacks, in the China market provided invaluable insights
into the Group’s strengths and weaknesses in penetrating that market, on the
basis of which we will be reviewing our China strategy. This will be timely as we
welcome a new CEO to the Group in the course of the year.

Business Review

(i) Tradelink/DTTN

As foreshadowed last year, our core business of providing front-end GETS
recovered during the year with a 3.3% increase in revenue over 2013, the
first increase since competition was introduced in 2004, over a decade
ago. This represents a major breakthrough for the team as it disproves the
suspicion that erosion of our revenue and market share is inevitable in the
face of cut-throat competition and re-instills our belief in reliability, service
quality and integrity as the values that command client loyalty.
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Business Review (continued)

(i) Tradelink/DTTN (continued)

Income from operating the Road Cargo System (“ROCARS”) Call Center
Service on behalf of the Customs & Excise Department and from our
own services during the past year remained level from a revenue point
of view but increased nearly ten-folds from a transaction point of view
with the recruitment of the largest forwarder in Hong Kong as a user of
our ROCARS services. While the recruitment had no significant revenue
effect, it was of substantial strategic value to us as it will increase our
stickiness as the service provider of choice for the forwarder concerned.
We are also pleased that we again won the tender for the right to operate
the ROCARS Call Center Service on behalf of the Customs & Excise
Department. The new contract will run for three years with effect from
February 2015 and involves a reasonable increase in our charges to
reflect increased costs.

Revenue from our non-GETS trade-related services dipped from HK$20.4
million to HK$18.3 million, or by about 10%, last year. This was due
to a one-off cash receipt recorded last year but not repeated in 2014.
A temporary halt to the roll-out of new services last year as the Group
devoted scarce resources to higher priority projects in other parts of the
business also meant that we were unable to add new revenue sources
in this segment. We remain committed, however, to the continual
improvement of our range of value adding services for our clients and
will take measures to address the resource constraint issues during the
course of 2015.

Following on from the nearly 50% increase in revenue in 2013, DTTN
revenue increased by a further 20%, to over HK$11 million, in 2014.
From a business incurring a loss of over HK$15 million in 2009, when we
acquired it from the other shareholders, DTTN has developed satisfactorily
during the past few years and is consistently returning a respectable profit
for the Group. Its continuing success has also enabled the Group to write
back some HK$29.5 million of the earlier impairments to our investment
in the subsidiary.
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Business Review (continued)

(i) Tradelink/DTTN (continued) (i) B8, DTTN(#)

Particularly impressive is the stellar quality of its client list and the diversity
of its new projects, all of which are building blocks for our ambition to
provide comprehensive end-to-end solutions for our clients along the
entire supply chain. The team was also able to maintain a very strong
pipeline of new projects for 2015. Of special interest are projects which
extend 020 capabilities to the B2C platforms that we are developing for
major clients. Many of these have strong recurrent revenue streams as
they will involve DTTN providing on-going services and support for the
platforms.

However, the “Community Platform” for connecting our predominantly
shipper clients with their air forwarders and the forwarders with their
carriers, a joint project with Global Logistics System (HK) Company
Limited (“GLSHK?"), has not taken off. It appears that stakeholders are
reluctant to invest in systems to enable them to connect to the platform
whilst they await the result of the Hong Kong Association of Freight
Forwarding and Logistics Limited (“HAFFA”) request to the Government
for funding the development of a wider platform to cover all forwarders/
carriers. The knowledge and experience gained from developing the
Community Platform will, however, be put to good use in developing a
similar platform for Shenzhen Airport in conjunction with SZATA.

During the year, work on our new B2C E-commerce platform, iTeM, was
completed. Designed originally as part of the eco-system for our mobile
wallet solution, it represents our continued progression from a pure B2G
service provider, with the launch of our GETS platform in 1996, to a B2G/
B2B service provider, with the acquisition of the entire shareholding in
DTTN in 2009, to a B2G/B2B/B2C service provider with the launch of
iTeM sometime in the second half of 2015.

Although we are still only at the merchant/customer recruitment phase for
the platform, iTeM has already attracted interest from a major credit card
operator in Hong Kong, which is interested in white labeling it as their B2C
platform for their merchants. Negotiations of the terms of co-operation
and business arrangements are at an advanced stage and should be
completed during Q1 2015. The platform has also attracted the interest
of the key mobile payment operator in Macau, their equivalent of Hong
Kong’s Octopus, which is interested in using it as their B2C platform. We
are also in discussions with our U-Link partners who are interested in
using it as their cross-border E-Commerce platform for the PRC market.
We are, therefore, excited about iTeM’s promise and will pursue further
opportunities for expanding both its scope and usage vigorously.
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Business Review (continued)

(ii) Digi-Sign/TESS

During the year, our security solutions business contracted significantly,
by some 30% from HK$31.5 million in 2013 to HK$22.5 million. A main
cause was the expected slowdown in the delivery of security tokens for
our major bank client, from 230,000 tokens delivered in 2013 to 167,000
in 2014, after the initial demand was satisfied. This accounted for a
drop of HK$5 million in revenue, or half of the drop in revenue for this
business segment. Despite this slowdown, the client has ordered a further
96,000 security tokens which, with the stock left over from their second
re-order in 2013, will keep the service adequately supplied for at least
another year. Moreover, we expect deliveries to recover in 2015 as the
battery life of some of our first deliveries are coming to an end and some
of the original tokens will need to be replaced. We also expect demand to
increase when the bank client concerned launches its E-cheque solution
towards the end of the year.

The confidence and satisfaction with our current tokens delivery service
and the E-cheque project work we are doing for them has led the client to
regard us as their strategic business partner rather than a normal services
vendor or S| work supplier. This led to additional project work for them
during 2015 and hopefully beyond.

In addition to the slowdown in our tokens delivery service, the launch
of our mobile wallet solution was delayed to end 2014 due to technical
issues at the client end, while the launch of our mobile PoS solution was
also delayed, probably until Q3 2015, because of system modifications
requested by clients and the time it will take to obtain fresh certification
by the credit card operators for the “new” product. In addition, the length
of time required by the banks to determine their E-cheque requirements
also delayed commencement of project work for them. This meant that no
E-cheque revenue was booked in 2014.

Other work in the security solutions front continued during the year, with
the addition of an additional bank using our OTP token solution and
another bank close to signing up a token delivery service similar to the
one we are operating for our major bank client. In addition, maintenance
and additional enhancement work plus provision of supplies for the Hong
Kong Police Smart Warrant Card System also continued during the year.
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(i) Digi-Sign/TESS
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Business Review (continued)

(ii) Digi-Sign/TESS (continued)

With three banks in Hong Kong having launched our mobile wallet by the
end of the year and the Taiwan Mobile Payment Company announcing,
on 30 December 2014, adoption of our mobile wallet for the mobile
payment platform that they will be developing for the Taiwan market, the
rolling out of our mobile PoS solution in the second half of the year and
the E-cheque project work we are undertaking for a number of banks, our
security solutions business will recover strongly in 2015. Beyond that, we
expect significant growth in digital certificate sales to our bank clients for
their E-cheque service and are confident of adding some of them to our
token delivery service list.

(iii) China
As foreshadowed last year, our China activities recovered during last year.
Improved performances by some of our PRC associates turned a HK$2.6
million share of loss in 2013 to a HK$6.5 million share of profit for the
year. This was mainly the result of profit contribution at Guofurui returning
to normal following the claw back of earlier profits last year.

As expected, the 4th Party Logistics Matching Platform launched by
U-Link in Q3 of 2013 has expanded rapidly. With the signing up of a
number of courier services and forwarders, the platform now offers some
30,000 routes. In addition, U-Link successfully launched a logistics
financing business at the end of last year to provide bridging finance for
the small logistics service providers in the market. This service is the first
of its kind in China, and possibly the world, and has proven to be very
popular, currently registering around 1,000 transactions per day. Further
expansion of the service will obviously depend on funding availability
and U-Link is in discussion with a number of banks/financial institutions
interested in providing financing for the service.

To enable U-Link to continue its rapid pace of expansion, we agreed
during the year to participate in its share capital increase exercise,
investing a further RMB 4.4 million into the business and slightly
increasing our stake in the JV to 26%. To maintain its pace of expansion,
U-Link is also in discussion with one of the major B2C platform operators
in the China market regarding its interest in collaboration with our
platform and in investing in the business.
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Business Review (continued)

(iii) China (continued)

Unfortunately, not all our associates have performed to expectations. For
example, the re-launch of ;T &t X 4RI AR A A (“SCNT”) has
been held in abeyance by our partners with little prospect for a revival
in the short term while 3t R TEIRERHR AR AT (“T-Link”) failed to
launch its Teachers Platform after the initial soft launch failed to attract
hit rates on a consistent basis. In addition, some historical operational
problems uncovered at Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science & Technology
Service Company Limited (“Nanfang”) during 2014 undoubtedly
distracted the new management team there. As a result, we decided to
write down part of these investments during 2014.

As regards our project work in that market, uncertainties continued to
dog the market as policy and political risks ratcheted up a notch during
last year. As a result, a number of our clients abandoned projects agreed
earlier with us while others continued to drag their feet in finalizing terms
of work. We decided to desist from pursuing these and concentrated
efforts on our collaboration with SZATA to build a Platform to link the
carriers, cargo terminal operators, forwarders and shippers based at
Shenzhen Airport. We expect the platform to be launched towards the
latter part of 2015. The collaboration with SZATA has also opened up
other opportunities for project work with two of the airlines based at
Shenzhen Airport. We are pursuing these actively.

While arrangements for the disposal of our stake in Pinggu, the moribund
logistics park just outside Beijing, back to the controlling shareholder at
our original investment cost was completed during the year, the disposal
of our Guofurui stake met with a minor set-back. An earlier interested
buyer pulled out because we were unable to provide assurances regarding
their eventual ability to secure a controlling stake in the data center,
which was not something we as an out-going shareholder can give, while
a subsequent interested party pulled out because they were not content
with the absence of an exit plan for their investment. We have, however,
recently signed yet another memorandum of understanding and the
related non-disclosure agreement for the disposal with an interested party
to enable the due diligence work to commence. We, therefore, expect the
disposal of our stake in Guofurui to be completed during 2015.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B 5BEFE 5 ERAR]

RBERE(E)

(iii) PE (%)

AR RRIPTE B E R BNRRE RIEAR - )
o R E BRI AR R AR AR (DT #
RDERNFLEEM - SERHEEENRREXE
FHE) - MMM T & B RAITERAREFERSI HE
o LA RTHMERIMBRARAF (TR TEIRR])
REEHEHZ T B - ihoh  —T—MFERERRAETEFER
BIRBERAR(TEDDNBEBEETHEEMNE
ERTEOMMERERNIEN - BIORER-F
—OERR A D R FRE o

HMXZHISNIEE T2 H - 2FhREERIE
R HEORBNE - 35— BN - Bk - TAOEPK
ZEMARMBENRE - HbEPRIBEREEE
TRER - RIFPREFIEZFRE - EXERYITH
BHENAE  BIERRYIES A ER
o BEW  BRENBEANTE - RABEBRZTE
EN_F-AFREDL - ERYITHEH S S ETTR
HAFRERRARYNES RAMOMERRTNEE
HAKE - HPIERGRE -

FRN - BAYRRERERARRZEBRBR LB &P
IERINEF R E YR E A - &S B E R
RABMEH PR —R2ERERBEKRERR -
HIEARERRBEEARELKZEESEERT LM
ZikiEE  MERZ—BEBNTREER - 2AR
HENRBREREFBIRAM - A - RVLHFL
EERAZ—ABILBTHRBRRERZE - A
FERRERAZ - Bt - ROEBR -_F-AFRA
TR ERERMER




Management Discussion & Analysis BIE @5/ & 04T

Business Review (continued)

(iv) Conclusion
In summary, our performance during 2014 remained robust and
demonstrated the added resilience of our balance sheet. With the
expected reversal of our security solutions business, solid GETS revenue,
a strong DTTN pipeline and continued good performance in our China
activities, we expect a much improved 2015 performance.

Financial Review

The Group’s revenue for the year fell 1.6%, from HK$230.0 million in 2013
to HK$226.3 million in 2014. The main decline came from weaker revenue
from our security solutions business, which fell by around HK$9.0 million
from HK$31.5 million in 2013 to HK$22.5 million in 2014. Revenue from our
other trade-related services also fell from HK$20.4 million in 2013 to HK$18.3
million in 2014. Part of the decline was off-set by increases in our core GETS
revenue, which grew by 3.3%, from HK$168.2 million in 2013 to HK$173.8
million in 2014, and in DTTN revenue, which increased from HK$9.8 million in
2013 to HK$11.7 million in 2014.

The Group’s interest income increased 21% year-on-year, from HK$11.9
million in 2013 to HK$14.4 million in 2014. The Group also recorded a gain
of HK$5.7 million from the switching of part of our corporate bond holdings
during the year. This was lower than the HK$6.7 million gain from switches
recorded in 2013. Our other net income for 2014 was also lower than in
2013 because the gain of HK$7.0 million from the disposal of our 25%
shareholding in Telstra Technology Services (Hong Kong) Limited in 2013 was
an exceptional non-recurring item.

The Group's overall costs before depreciation increased from HK$149.6
million to HK$153.8 million, a year-on-year increase of 2.8%. The major
changes included a decline in the cost of purchases, from HK$21.3 million
in 2013 to HK$17.7 million in 2014, due to the completion of the Hong Kong
Police Smart Warrant Card System project in 2013, the slowdown of OTP token
deliveries for our major bank client in 2014 and the fact that the legal costs
from the Brio case in 2013 was not a recurrent item. The lower costs were,
however, countered by increased staff costs, from HK$90.8 million in 2013 to
HK$101.3 million, in 2014.
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Financial Review (continued)

Depreciation charges in 2014, of HK$8.9 million, were lower than 2013 by
HK$1.1 million.

As a result, the Group’s profit from operations for 2014 came to HK$83.6
million, a decrease of 13% over the HK$96.1 million in 2013.

The Group’s associates and joint venture in the PRC contributed a share of
profit of HK$6.5 million in 2014, as compared to a share of loss of HK$2.6
million in 2013. During the year, a review of the Group’s investments resulted
in a provision of HK$4.3 million for impairment of our investments in two
associates: Nanfang and T-Link.

The Group’s pre-tax profit for 2014 came to HK$85.8 million, lower than 2013
by HK$7.6 million. Net profit for the year was HK$74.2 million, lower than the
HK$80.4 million achieved in 2013 by HK$6.2 million.

Basic earnings per share for 2014 were HK 9.3 cents, lower than 2013 by HK
1.1 cents, while diluted earnings per share, at HK 9.3 cents, was lower by HK
0.9 cent.

During the year, the capital of DTTNCo, a wholly-owned subsidiary, was
reduced by HK$94.2 million under a capital reduction exercise, bringing its
capital down from HK$135.2 million to HK$41 million, to set off earlier losses
carried in DTTNCo’s books. This will enable future profits earned by DTTNCo
to be distributed to the Company.

DTTNCo’s earlier losses arose during the period 2005 to 2009 when it was
still an associate of the Company and represented the development and
promotional costs of DTTN services at the time. These losses obliged the
Company to make provisions of HK$59.7 million during that period to impair
its investment in the associate.

In 2009, the Company bought out the other shareholders and DTTNCo
became a wholly-owned subsidiary. With full control, the Group was able to
drastically reduce costs and developed new services. During the recent two
years, DTTNCo experienced strong growth, resulting in its net asset value
exceeding its carrying value in the books of the Company. To reflect the
current carrying value, the Company wrote-back HK$29.5 million of the earlier
impairment losses in November 2014. The write-back amount was transferred
to distributable reserves.
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Dividend

The Board has recommended a final 2014 dividend of HK 4.9 cents per share
(2013: HK 6.2 cents per share). The proposed final dividend, together with
the interim dividend of HK 3.6 cents (2013: HK 4.0 cents) paid on 9 October
2014, represents 91% of the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders for
2014.

The apparent dividend rate of 91% does not represent a departure from the
Group’s practice of a 100% pay-out. The HK 4.9 cents per share final dividend
in fact represents 100% of the Company’s distributable profit in 2014. The
difference reflects the gap between profit attributable to shareholders and
profit distributable to shareholders. The distinction between the two arises
because the Company, as a Hong Kong company, is only allowed by the
Hong Kong’s Companies Ordinance to distribute profits received by it. Profits
attributable to shareholders not received by the Company, such as share of
profits from associates not received by the Company in the form of dividends or
DTTNCo profits used to set-off earlier losses, do not form profits distributable
to shareholders.

In the past, the Company covered the gap between attributable and
distributable profits from its distributable reserves. However, after nearly
10 years of distributing 100% of attributable profits to shareholders, our
distributable reserves were finally exhausted in 2013 and the Company has
no further means to make up the difference, causing what appears to be only
a 91% pay out rate to shareholders in 2014. As pointed out above, the HK
4.9 cents per share final dividend in fact represents 100% of the Company’s
distributable profit in 2014.

Apart from the final dividend, the Board has also recommended returning the
entire amount from the HK$29.5 million DTTNCo write-back to shareholders
through a special dividend of HK 3.7 cents per share as the Company has
no immediate need for the cash (2013: Nil). This brings the total dividend for
2014 to HK 12.2 cents per share, an increase of nearly 20% over 2013.

The proposed final dividend and special dividend will be submitted to
shareholders for approval at the annual general meeting on 8 May 2015. If
approved, the final dividend and special dividend will be paid to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 14 May
2015, on or about 26 May 2015.

The Board reminds shareholders that the Company’s dividend policy
enunciated at the time of our IPO in 2005 is that it will pay no less than 60%
of its distributable profit as dividend. The fact that the Company has paid
out 100% of its attributable profit for the past nine years and 100% of its
distributable profit this year does not mean that the policy has changed.
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Liquidity and Financial Position

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total cash and bank deposits of
HK$114.0 million (2013: HK$113.8 million). Total assets and net assets
of the Group as at 31 December 2014 amounted to HK$612.1 million
(2013: HK$610.5 million) and HK$377.1 million (2013: HK$373.0 million)
respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no borrowings (2013: Nil).

Capital and Reserves

As at the end of 2014, the capital and reserves attributable to shareholders
stood at HK$377.1 million (2013: HK$373.0 million), an increase of HK$4.1
million over 2013.

Charges on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had three bank guarantees totaling
HK$2.6 million (2013: HK$2.6 million) and two performance bonds totaling
HK$0.7 million (2013: HK$0.6 million) issued to the Government for the due
performance by the Group pursuant to the terms of the contracts with the
Government. The bank guarantees and performance bonds are secured by a
charge over deposits totaling HK$3.8 million (2013: HK$3.7 million).

Other than the foregoing, the Group had no other charges on its assets.
Capital Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at end of 2014 not provided for in the
financial statements amounted to HK$1.8 million (2013: HK$0.2 million),
mainly in respect of hardware and software for our platforms.

During the year, the Board approved a further cash investment of RMB 4.4
million in U-Link, a PRC associate, to increase our stake from 24.5% to 26%.
This amount was approved but not provided for in the financial statements.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

As at 31 December 2014, other than its investments in the PRC incorporated

entities and Renminbi-denominated debt securities, the Group had no foreign
exchange exposure or related hedges.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s accounting policies and
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014. It also had
independent discussions with the internal auditor and the external auditor,
KPMG, without the presence of the management team.

Corporate Review

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 253 staff (2013: 249), of which
220 work in Hong Kong and 33 in Guangzhou. The related staff costs for the
year came to HK$101.3 million (2013: HK$90.8 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy is that all employees are rewarded at market
levels. In addition to salaries, the Group provides staff benefits including
medical insurance and contributions to the staff’s mandatory provident
fund. To motivate and reward performance, the Group has a discretionary
performance bonus scheme to better drive and reward growth.

The Company operates three share option schemes and a share award
scheme to reward performance of assistant managers and above. The share
award scheme was terminated in December 2013.

Corporate Developments

Tradelink call centre won a Gold Award in the 2014 Mystery Caller Assessment
Award organized by the Hong Kong Call Centre Association. This was the
third consecutive years Tradelink won the Gold Award, demonstrating our
consistently high quality services to our customers.

During the year, Tradelink and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Digi-Sign, also
continued their status as a “Caring Company” conferred by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service.
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Directors

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P., aged 72, was appointed a Director on 19
September 2000. He is also our Chairman. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in
Electrical Engineering from the Imperial College, London, the United Kingdom
and a Doctorate from Brown University, the United States. He joined Textile
Alliance Limited (TAL) in Hong Kong in 1973 and in 1983, was appointed
Managing Director (title changed to Chief Executive since 2010) of TAL Apparel
Limited, which currently employs over 25,000 employees. Dr. LEE is now the
Chairman of the company. He was a Director of The Link Management Limited
and of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation. He has over 40 years’ experience
in the textile and garment industry. He is actively involved in a number of
trade organizations in Hong Kong. He was the Chairman of the Innovation &
Technology Fund (“Textiles Projects”) Vetting Committee, council member of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is currently the Honorary Chairman
of the Hong Kong Garment Manufacturer’s Association, Honorary Chairman of
Textile Council of Hong Kong Ltd, board member of Global Apparel, Footwear
& Textile Initiative, Chairman of Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles &
Apparel Ltd. He was named in the Queen’s birthday honours list as an Officer
of the British Empire (“OBE”) in 1996. He was appointed a Justice of Peace (“J.
P.”) in 1997 and was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star (“S.B.S.”) at the Fourth
Anniversary of the Establishment of the HKSAR in 2001.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 65, was appointed a Director on 1
October 2009. He served as an INED of the Company during the period from
2 September 2008 to 13 July 2009. Mr. WU was appointed an Executive
Director and CEO-designate of the Company on 1 October 2009 and assumed
the CEO role on 1 January 2010. He is currently a director of the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiaries, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited, Digital
Trade and Transportation Network Limited, Up Forward Technology Limited,
EClink Technology Limited and Tradelink E-Biz Secure Solutions Limited. Mr.
WU is also a director of the following subsidiaries of the Company: Tradelink
(Beijing) Electronic Commerce Limited (It REZH ZBE T RIREBRE A
&)), Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. (K28 5 @R AR A 7)), Tradelink
(Tianjin) Electronic Commerce Limited (K)2ZEHBEFRIRBERAT), X
FEEH 5@ AR AT and Guangzhou Tradelink Electronic Commerce
Ltd. (BB F@EEFRIFAR A T). Mr. WU graduated from the University
of Hong Kong in 1972 and served in the then Government of Hong Kong
until 1989 when he joined the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”)
becoming its Deputy Chairman, Chief Operating Officer and Executive Director
of Intermediaries Supervision Departments from 1995 to 1997. In 1999,
Mr. WU joined the China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) and
acted as its Advisor until 2001. From April 2001 to July 2002, he served as
a commissioner of the Strategy & Development Committee of CSRC and the
Deputy Chairman of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He subsequently joined
SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and acted as its Chairman (China Region)
until June 2004. Mr. WU continued to act as an independent non-executive
director of SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited until 21 November 2011. He
is currently an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment
Limited and until 2 January 2015, was an independent non-executive director
of Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings Ltd. (formerly known as Ever Fortune
International Holdings Limited) (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, aged 45, was appointed a Director and
acting DCEO of the Company on 15 November 2011. He is currently DCEO of
the Company. Mr. CHENG holds a Master of Commerce degree in Information
Systems from the University of New South Wales, a Master of Engineering
degree from the University of Sydney, a Bachelor of Engineering degree with
Honours in Electrical Engineering from the University of Sydney and a Bachelor
of Science degree from the University of Sydney. Mr. CHENG is currently a
director of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries, Digi-Sign Certification
Services Limited, Up Forward Technology Limited, EClink Technology Limited,
Trade Facilitation Services Limited and Tradelink E-Biz Secure Solutions
Limited. He is also a director of the following subsidiaries of the Company:
Tradelink (Beijing) Electronic Commerce Limited (3t R Z: 5B E FRHR
B AT, Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. (K332Z 5EEHZER AT,
Tradelink (Tianjin) Electronic Commerce Limited (KEZE{ESBE TR A
BT, KEBHSEREAR AT and Guangzhou Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Ltd. (BN EZBETFEHEABRZAF). Mr. CHENG has over 19
years’ experience in IT-related business, covering internet security, domestic
and international supply chain, logistics and finance. He was a specialist in
the consultancy on the setting up of a Public Key Infrastructure by the Hong
Kong Government and is currently a member of the Advisory Committee on the
Code of Practice for Recognized Certification Authorities of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Government as well as a member of the
Expert Review Panel of Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistics and Supply Chain
Management Enabling Technologies.

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, aged 58, was appointed a Director on 2
September 2008. She joined the Company in 1992. She is currently the Chief
Operations Officer of the Company and a director of the Company’s wholly
owned subsidiaries, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited, Digital Trade
and Transportation Network Limited and Up Forward Technology Limited.
Ms. CHUNG is also a director of the following subsidiaries of the Company:
Tradelink (Beijing) Electronic Commerce Limited (3t R Z: 5B E FRHR
AR /AR, Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. (K3E8 Si@EEHEBERAF),
Tradelink (Tianjin) Electronic Commerce Limited (KEZE{ESBE TR A
RAR), XEZMSBERFEARAT and Guangzhou Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Ltd. (EMBH 5 BEFEHLAR A F]). She previously served
as an Executive Director of the Company from 13 May 2005 to 3 November
2006 and from 9 July 2007 to 27 November 2007 respectively. Ms. CHUNG
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree
and a Master of Science degree in Engineering. Prior to joining the Company,
Ms. CHUNG worked in the then Government of Hong Kong for over 11 years
providing management consultancy services to government bureaux and
departments. Since joining the Company in 1992, she has gained over 20
years of solid experience in the e-commerce business with both the public and
private sectors. She has a wealth of diversified experience in the management
of various business aspects of the Company.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred, aged 64, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. As the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Mr. LI is responsible
for all our financial management activities including financial accounting
and reporting, treasury, budgeting, financial planning and control. He was
the Company Secretary of the Company during the respective periods from
17 June 2006 to 7 July 2006 and from 23 October 2006 to 31 December
2014. He is a director of the following subsidiaries of the Company: Digi-
Sign Certification Services Limited, Digital Trade and Transportation Network
Limited, Up Forward Technology Limited, Tradelink E-Biz Secure Solutions
Limited, iTradelink eMarket Limited, Trade Facilitation Services Limited
and Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. (K28 5@EIH AR A A]). He has
over 35 years’ experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining us in
1997, he held the post of Senior Manager in the Finance Division of Hong
Kong Telecommunications Limited. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration, a Master of Science degree in Logistics and a Master of
Science degree in Finance. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants in the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael, aged 53, was appointed a Director on 9 May
2008. He is the Managing Director of GCIS Limited. Mr. KIHM has over 20
years of experience in financial management. Prior to founding GCIS Limited,
he had been with Allianz Group for 14 years where he held senior positions
in asset management, mergers & acquisitions and corporate finance. Prior
to joining Allianz, he had worked for 3 years as a consultant in treasury
management. Mr. KIHM has been awarded the CFA charter by CFA Institute,
Charlotteville, USA, a Master’s degree in Management from ESCP-EAP, Paris,
France and Master’s degree in Mathematics from University of Ulm, Germany.
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Directors (continued)

Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. LEE Delman, aged 47, was appointed a Director of the Company on 29
October 2012. Dr. LEE holds a doctorate from the University of Oxford and a
Bachelor’'s degree in Electrical & Electronics Engineering from the Imperial
College, London. He is the President and Chief Technology Officer for TAL
Apparel Limited (“TAL”), which currently holds approximately 12.91% of the
issued share capital of the Company. He is responsible for driving TAL's long-
term strategy in operations, technology and value-added services to customers.
He looks after information technology and supply chain projects — from IT
infrastructure to logistics management throughout the entire organization. He
is the architect behind the company’s current enterprise resource planning
(ERP) system. He is also responsible for global operations initiatives such as
standardization of work methods, cultivation of a continuous improvement
organization and corporate social responsibility.

Dr. LEE joined TAL Apparel in 2000. He was appointed a member of the
TAL Group’s Executive Committee in 2006 and became President and Chief
Technology Officer in 2010. He has a strong background in research. Prior to
joining TAL, he was a researcher at UK based Sharp Laboratories of Europe
for three years. There, he was responsible for the commercial application of
modern computer vision techniques to stereo photography and stereoscopic
displays. He has worked as a research fellow at University of Pennsylvania in
the US and University of Leeds in the UK in various aspects of imaging.

Since 4 March 2010, Dr. LEE has been a director of Luckytex (Thailand) Public
Co. Ltd. (listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with stock code “LTX").

Mr. TSE Kam Keung, aged 55, was appointed a Director on 4 March 2013.
Mr. TSE is a veteran executive in the financial services industry in the Asia
Pacific region. Apart from being an advisor to State Street Corporation, he also
serves as an independent board director of Hopu Investment Co Ltd and an
outside board director of CLS Group Holdings AG and CLS Bank International.

He joined State Street in 1993 to develop and lead its investment servicing
business in the region and was well recognized for his success in building out
the business to over US$1 trillion under custody and administration. In 2011
he transitioned to a part-time advisory role to pursue other interests. Before
joining State Street, he had worked in various roles at Standard Chartered,
Ogilvy & Mather, Baring Securities and the Hong Kong Government.
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Directors (continued)

Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. TSE has served on a variety of industry groups and government
committees. He is currently a member of the Government’s Statistics Advisory
Board as well as on the Financial Infrastructure Sub-Committee of the
Exchange Fund Advisory Committee. In recognition of his contribution to the
industry, Asian Investor awarded him its inaugural Individual Service Award in
2008.

He has also supported Oxfam Hong Kong for over two decades, including
acting as its Chairman from 2003-2009, and remains on its Finance and Audit
Committee.

Mr. TSE received his BA from Lawrence University, MBA from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, and MPA from the University of Hong Kong. He is a
full member of the Australian Institute of Public Accountants and the Institute
of Certified Management Accountants. He holds Adjunct Professorship at
the Chinese University of Hong Kong for its Shatin as well as its Shenzhen
campuses. He is a member of the Board of Trustees of Lawrence University.

Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth, aged 59, was appointed a Director on 26 June
2012. He was a director of the Company during the period from 16 September
1996 to 9 May 2008. Mr. YING is the Managing Director of COSCO-HIT
Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited (“CHT”) and the Executive Director of Asia
Container Terminals Limited (“ACT”). He is also an EXCO member of the
Hutchison Port Holdings Trust. Mr. YING has over 30 years’ experience in
the finance and logistic sector. Prior to joining CHT, he held various executive
positions at Hutchison Port Holdings Limited (“HPH”). He was the Executive
Director of Hongkong International Terminals Limited and the Finance Director
of South China Division of HPH. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accounts and also a fellow member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. He was a member of the Port
Development Advisory Group of the HKSAR.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAK Hubert, aged 53, was appointed a Director on 21 October 2002. He
is currently Director (Finance) of The Link Management Limited (“The Link”),
the manager of The Link Real Estate Investment Trust, which he joined in June
2010 and is responsible for the finance, capital markets and investor relations
functions of The Link. Before joining The Link, he was the Group Chief
Operating Officer and Executive Director of CSI Properties Limited. Mr. CHAK
held various senior management positions at PCCW Limited between 1999 and
2007 and was an executive director of Pacific Century Premium Developments
Limited until February 2007. He holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree and a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from
University of Wales (now known as Cardiff University).

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan, aged 53, has over 25 years of experience in financial
planning and business analysis. She retired from PepsiCo Inc. (listed on
The New York Stock Exchange) as CFO, China Beverage and Senior Region
Financial Planning & Analysis Director, China Region of PepsiCo Inc. in
Shanghai on 31 December 2014. Ms. CHAN has worked with PepsiCo Inc.
in Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Hong Kong. Prior to joining PepsiCo Inc.,
Ms. CHAN worked in Hong Kong for ExxonMobil Chemical and Nestlé S.A.
(listed on SIX Swiss Exchange). Ms. CHAN graduated from University of
Western Ontario, Canada in 1983 with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economic
and Administrative & Financial Studies and obtained a Master of Business
Administration in Marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1985.

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay, aged 72, was appointed a Director of the Company on 1
September 2009. He was the non-executive Chairman of the board of directors
of the Company from 1998 to 2002. Mr. CHAU graduated from The University
of Hong Kong in 1967. He served in the Hong Kong Government from 1967
to 2002. Between 1988 and 2002, Mr. CHAU served in a number of principal
official positions in the Government, including Secretary for Trade and Industry,
Secretary for Commerce and Industry, Secretary for Broadcasting, Culture
and Sport, and Secretary for Health and Welfare. Following his departure
from the Government, Mr. CHAU was an independent non-executive director
of the Hong Kong Main Board listed China Life Insurance Company Limited
from 2003 to 2009. He has been an independent non-executive director of
the Hong Kong Main Board listed SJM Holdings Limited since 2008; and
Wheelock & Company Limited since 2012. Mr. CHAU was awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government in 2002.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy, aged 65, was appointed a Director on 11
May 2007. He has over 20 years of experience in financial advisory, taxation
and management. He was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers and retired in
June 2005. In October 2005, he joined a professional consulting firm, Russell
Bedford Hong Kong Limited, as Director-Tax & Business Advisory. Mr. CHUNG
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Taxation Institution of Hong Kong and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA). He was the President of the Hong Kong branch of ACCA
for the year 2005/06. He is currently also an Independent Non-executive
Director and Chairman of the audit committee of Fittec International Group
Limited and Lee Kee Holdings Limited (all listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited) and China World Trade Center Company Limited (listed
on The Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P., aged 54, was appointed a Director on 13 May
2005. He holds a Bachelor’s degree from The University of Hong Kong.
Mr. HO is the Executive Director of the Hong Kong Shippers’ Council. He
has over 20 years’ experience in the Shipping and Logistics industry. As he
now shapes the thrust of the Shippers’ Council mandate as the voice of the
Hong Kong shippers, he has considerable experience in aspects of trade and
transport of goods. Prior to the Shippers’ Council, he was Deputy Managing
Director of Swire Shipping Agencies and Taikoo Maritime Services Ltd, gaining
experience in liner shipping, warehousing and distribution, freight forwarding,
container haulage, mid-stream operations, China feeders, transport and
logistics services. Mr. HO is a member of the Logistics Development Council,
the Logistics Industry Training Advisory Committee, and the Town Planning
Board. He is also a member of the Transport & Shipping Committee of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and Logistics Services Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He was appointed a
member of the Port Operations Committee and the Dangerous Goods Standing
Committee for several years and Chairman of the Hong Kong Liner Shipping
Association for 1993-1995. He is the current Chairman of Hong Kong Logistics
Management Staff Association, Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Logistics &
Transport in Hong Kong and its President, Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing (Hong Kong), and Advisor to the China Council for the Promotion
of International Trade of International Trade Guangzhou Sub-Council, and the
Shenzhen Ports & Harbour Association. Mr. HO has been elected as a member
of the Election Committee for the Chief Executive in 2011.
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The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance and
confirms that it has complied with all the provisions of the prevailing Code on
Corporate Governance Practices in the Listing Rules.

(1) Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules to govern its Directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors have confirmed compliance with the required standards during
2014.

(2) Internal Controls & Risk Management

The Company recognizes the need for a sound and effective system
of internal control and risk management to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets. As an on-going process, the
Company has assessed its internal control system with reference to the
COSO (The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission, 1994) internal control framework, specifically in relation
to the five elements of: control environment, risk assessment, control
activities, communication and monitoring. In addition, the Company
also carried out a high-level risk assessment review in the form of a self-
risk assessment process by relevant department heads supplemented
by independent risk control tests conducted by the Company’s Internal
Audit Department. The review covered the Company’s operations and
its associated key processes and sub-processes, including strategic
management, core business processes and resource management.
Based on these reviews, the Company is satisfied that its internal control
and risk management systems are adequate and effective.

(3) Board of Directors

(i) Board Composition

As at 31 December 2014, the Company is led by a Board comprising
three Executive Directors, five Non-executive Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, and four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Independent Non-executive Directors represent at
least one-third of the Board as required by the Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. The four Independent Non-executive Directors have all
confirmed in writing to the Company that they meet the guidelines
for independence in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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3) ExE (&)

(3) Board of Directors (continued)

() E=SHEME)

(i) Board Composition (continued)

The Board oversees the overall management and operations of the
Company. Major responsibilities include determining the Company’s
overall business, financial and technical strategies, setting key
performance targets, approving budgets and major expenditures,
supervising the performance of management with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value.

As at the date of this annual report, the members of the Board are:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Executive Directors
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily (Chief Operations Officer)
Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 9 February 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael
Dr. LEE Delman*

Mr. TSE Kam Keung

Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAK Hubert

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan (appointed on 9 February 2015)
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

(* Dr. LEE Delman is a nephew of Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.)

The Directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board on the
advice of the Remuneration Committee and have regard to specific
duties and responsibilities.

The biographical information of Directors is in the “Directors and
Senior Management” Section on pages 22 to 29 of this annual
report.
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(3) Board of Directors (continued) 3) EEE(4H)
(i) Changes to Board Composition (i) ESSHEHRNEE

Pursuant to Article 92 of the Articles of Association of the Company, RIBANTEEERMANERE  EEE 0] N

the Board may from time to time appoint a Director to fill a casual ETESEGEETHRSEIMREESS A

vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Such new Directors hold FEENTHEZTERRBAFAS AL - BRF

office only until the following annual general meeting but are then BRI o B T —PUE P EIIRE AR - &
eligible for re-election. Two such appointments were made by the FeEHMAEBEZT - BIELETHRAE13.51B

Board since the publication of the 2014 Interim Report. Pursuant (L - HEAZESHEENT -

to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, this change is highlighted as

follows:

(@) Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred, has been appointed as an Executive (a) FRELERZERNTEE B-FT—H
Director with effect from 9 February 2015; and FZANARAERN: &

(b) Ms. CHAN Chi Yan has been appointed as an Independent (b) MERLTEZTARNRRBYIIFNTES
Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee, MEZELZES  EERTEIRKERELE
the Corporate Governance Committee and the Investment X8 B ZT—RF-_ANBBAEK-
Committee of the Company respectively with effect from 9
February 2015.

The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board: TEARESSKELTERBEN
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(3) Board of Directors (continued)

(iii) Appointment, Rotational Retirement and Re-election

(iv)

(v)

There are no service contracts between the Company and the
Independent Non-executive Directors. They have no fixed terms
of service but are subject to the rotational retirement and re-
election provisions in Article 100 of the Articles of Association of the
Company. Pursuant to that, one half of the Directors retires each
year but are eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer are held by Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. and Mr. WU
Wai Chung, Michael, respectively to maintain effective segregation of
duties. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning
of the Board and the strategies of the Group while the Chief
Executive Officer is responsible for managing the Group’s day-to-day
businesses.

The Chairman of the Board held a private session with the Non-
executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of the Executive Directors immediately after the
Directors’ Conference on 26 April 2014.

Directors’ Time Commitments

The Directors have confirmed that, during the course of the year,
they devoted adequate time to discharging their duties as members
of the Board and its Committees. The Directors also confirmed
that they had been provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
operations, performance and business prospects together with
monthly management accounts to enable them to discharge their
duties. Directors further confirmed that additional information,
explanation and clarification were provided by the management
team in response to questions raised by them in the course of their
reviews of such materials.

3) ExE (&)

(i) 2 - MEREREREE

(iv)

(v)
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(3) Board of Directors (continued)

(vi) Board Meetings

3) ExE (&)

(vi) EEEg

During 2014, the Board met four times. The attendance of Directors is No-ZT—UE  BEFeLRFUISHE TS50
as follows: HEENT :
Number of meetings
held while Number of
being a director meetings
ERESRHETH attended
Names HE BRRE HESEIE
Chairman *E
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. ZThfEd+ 0 SB.S., J.P. 4 4
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael RIBRRSCE(TTEAREE)
(Chief Executive Officer) 4 4
Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew ENR RS A& (BT TECAE )
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer) 4 4
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily $EBER Lt (& e
(Chief Operations Officer) 4 4
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael KIHM Lutz Hans Michael 5 & 4 4
Dr. LEE Delman FEAHEL 4 2
Mr. TSE Kam Keung Bk pitea 4 3
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth BT ks 4 3
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHTES
Mr. CHAK Hubert Bihin s 4 4
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay [REER S 4 4
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy ERELE 4 4
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. IS E A 0 P, 4 4
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3) ExE (&)

(3) Board of Directors (continued)

(vii) EEREBEAFRE ARENEE

(vii) Directors’ and Auditors Responsibilities for the Accounts

The Directors acknowledge responsibility for preparing financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. In this regard, the Directors have confirmed that appropriate
accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and
that judgments and estimates made were prudent and reasonable in
light to the information provided by management.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014, the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong were adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the applicable laws were complied
with.

The Board has prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis and is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast doubt in the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of the Group are
disclosed in the “Report of the Auditors”.

(viii) Director’ and Auditors’ Attendance at the Annual General

Meeting

The Chairman of the Board, Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.,
and all Chairmen of the Board Committees, namely Mr. CHUNG
Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee), Mr. CHAU Tak Hay (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P., (Chairman
of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. TSE Kam Keung (Chairman
of the Investment Committee) attended the Company’s AGM held
on 9 May 2014. Mr. CHAK Hubert, an Independent Non-executive
Director, and Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael, a Non-executive
Director, were unable to attend due to other business commitments.

The Company’s external auditor, KPMG, also attended the AGM to
confirm the audited financial statements of the Company and to
answer questions from shareholders.
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(3) Board of Directors (continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional Development
All newly appointed Directors attend an induction programme to
enhance their knowledge and understanding of the Group’s business
and operations and their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and regulatory requirement.

During the year, the Company also arranged a 6-hour in-house
conference to brief Directors on corporate objectives, business
strategy and disclosure obligations. In addition, Directors were
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
refresh and enhance their knowledge and skills.

All Directors participated in continuous professional development as
set out in code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code.
Training records are provided by each Director to the Company.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance to indemnify them for liabilities in respect of legal
actions arising from its day-to-day business activities. During the
year, the insurance coverage was HK$100 million.

Board Evaluation

The Board recognizes the benefits of regular evaluations of its
performance. During the year, an evaluation covering Board and
Board Committee performance was conducted by the Corporate
Governance Committee with the assistance of the management
team. Areas covered included the overall effectiveness of the Board
and its Committees, in particular the appropriateness of their
terms of reference and delegations, attendance, participation and
contributions both during and outside meetings. The conclusion was
satisfactory.
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(4) EB2Z8TE

(4) Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees: Audit, Corporate EESOKY NIEES :

BE ¥FMWZEE  REXE

BREEE  DbEERZ
ehRARBE -

Governance, Remuneration, Nomination and Investment Committees.

(i) Audit Committee (i) BRZEE

The Audit Committee consists of one Non-executive Director and
four Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee oversees the overall financial reporting process
as well as the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal
controls. In addition, it is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board for the appointment, reappointment or removal of the
external auditor. It also reviews and monitors the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity as well as the effectiveness of the audit

BRREER BN TEERMBBILIFNTT
BEREK -

BRRESEFRATNERMBEMSIET LA
ERAGIRERRAY - I BREREETE
BERERME - EMRERBRIMNSREE - mES
SELEREE - ERZBSRBREMEBS
BEZBMREBINER  UREREFRS

Mo R RRERIEF 2 TERER

process to make sure that it is in full compliance with applicable

standards.
During 2014, the Audit Committee met twice. The attendance of R-Z—F  BERRESERITMAESH &
members is as follows: BHEENT
Number of
meetings held
while being Number of
a member meetings
BEZEREITH attended
Names HE BRI HESEIE
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman) 84854 (+/E) 2 2
Mr. CHAK Hubert Bkt 2 2
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay [REER e 2 2
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. IS E A 0 P, 2 2
Mr. TSE Kam Keung Bk e 2 2
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(4) EXZZEE (&)

(4) Board Committees (continued)

() BREEE(H)
R-T—NF  BREEGGHET MITE

(i) Audit Committee (continued)
During 2014, the Audit Committee performed the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(g

(h)

(i)

reviewed the Group’s financial statements for 2013, the draft
2013 annual report, the draft 2013 results announcement and
the proposed 2013 final dividend and recommended them to
the Board for approval;

reviewed the Group’s interim financial statements for the 6
months ended 30 June 2014, the draft 2014 interim report,
the draft results announcement for the 6 months ended 30
June 2014 and the proposed 2014 interim dividend and
recommended them to the Board for approval;

reviewed and approved the various audit plans and audit
reports prepared by the Internal Audit Department of the
Company;

reviewed the report prepared by the Internal Audit Department
on the internal control system based on the COSO (The
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) to ensure that the internal control and risk
management is adequate and effective;

reviewed the connected and continuing connected transactions
to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules;

met with the internal auditor independently to discuss the work
of the Internal Audit Department;

reviewed the remuneration of the internal auditor;

met with the external auditor, KPMG, independently to discuss
the financial reporting and internal control issues encountered
during the 2013 annual audit; and

reviewed the proposed audit fee for 2014 and recommended
the re-appointment of the external auditor to the Board for
consideration and final approval by shareholders at the annual
general meeting.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During 2014, the audit and non-audit fees payable/paid to KPMG
were: an audit fee of HK$0.92 million (2013: HK$0.88 million) and
a non-audit related service fee of HK$0.08 million (2013: HK$0.06
million). (The latter represented taxation service fees.)
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(4) EXZZEE (&)

(4) Board Committees (continued)

(ii) Remuneration Committee

(il FMEES

The Remuneration Committee consists of one Non-executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for marking
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and Senior Management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held three meetings.
The attendance of members is as follows:

PR EER B RNITEERMBBILIFTT
BEREK -

PR ESaEREE RS REEREOF R
R - MESERMEBEE -

Number of

meetings held
while being Number of
a member meetings
BEZERETH attended
Names HE BRRE HESEIE
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay (Chairman) FEEER S (/) 3 3
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy ERELE 3 3
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. ZThfEd+ - SB.S., J.P. 3 3

At these meetings, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
and recommended the remuneration packages of the senior
management team; the amount of performance bonus payable to
the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and reviewed the remuneration
package of the Chief Executive Officer.

Remuneration paid to Executive Directors and Senior Management
Remuneration paid to Senior Management in 2014 by band is as
follows:

FHZREeRtEed LT EEs R EEE
BRROZ MR8 ~ iR BN BIFT IR A B 0 AE SR TE AT
FARF I THARE R S B8 -

APTESERSREERE M
MNZE—MF - AERERE O FIA
TEE ¢

Number of staff

ETAHE
HK$6,000,001-HK$8,000,000 756,000,001 7T — 3 #£8,000,0007T 1
HK$4,000,001-HK$6,000,000 754,000,001 7T — 7 #6,000,0007C -
HK$3,000,001-HK$4,000,000 753,000,001 7T — 3 #4,000,0007T 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$3,000,000 752,000,001 7T — 3 #3,000,0007T 2
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 7T — & #2,000,0007T 1

Details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors in 2014 are set
out in Note 9to the Financial Statements.

R-ZB-—MELIMNTRITEEHHFHHBER
BTG ¥R ATALO
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(4) Board Committees (continued)

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited & 58

(iii) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of the Chairman of the Board
and two Independent Non-executive Directors.

The duty of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to select suitable candidates for
appointment as Directors by the General Meeting. The selection of
candidates is based on a balance of skills, professional qualifications
and experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company’s business.

(4) EXZZEE (&)

(i) RBEEEE

RELZECHEEE IR IMBBEIINTES
MK -

REZEENBAERRITEETNRE  RARR
e WEESBEAZE  URKRERAS LEHEE
REEEKE - BKiE - EXBER BREABE
FMRARREBNZ TR ARIEREANBURER -

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings. The FR RELECERITMALH  TEHEX
attendance of members is as follows: wmr
Number of
meetings held
while being Number of
a member meetings
BEZERETH attended
Names ®H BRRE HESEIE
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. (Chairman) IS ESE U P(ERE) 2 2
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy SBUERL S 2 2
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. ZThfEd+ - SB.S., J.P. 2 2
The Nomination Committee met in March 2014 to review and REZEGN_T—NF=ARTEFE  UEX
recommended all retiring Directors for re-election by shareholders at WEHEN T — @iﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’]$27ﬁ§

the Company’s annual general meeting on 9 May 2014.

On 24 June 2014, the Nomination Committee discussed the
appointment of Mr. TSE Kam Keung as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company with effect from 1 July 2015 and his re-designation as
a Non-executive Director with effect from 3 July 2014.
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(4) Board Committees (continued)

(iv) Investment Committee

(v)

The Investment Committee consists of two Non-executive Director
and two Independent Non-executive Directors.

The duty of the Investment Committee is to oversee the Company’s
investments in financial instruments and the management’s
execution of the investment policy guidelines laid down by the
Board.

During the year, the Investment Committee convened two meetings.
The attendance of members is as follows:

(4) EB2Z8TE

(&)

(iv) REZEE

KALZESmMBHNTEERMBBILIFNTT
BEREK -

KAZBEENBAREBEARARERMTAMNK
BEURERENTESEMERERRESING
e

FN - BREZBEY
s

AHMAEE®  ZEHEX

Number of

meetings held
while being Number of
a member meetings
BEZERETH attended
Names HE BRRE HESBRE
Mr. TSE Kam Keung (Chairman) HHiRoR () 2 2
Mr. CHAK Hubert Bkt 2 2
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay [REER S 2 2
Dr. LEE Delman ZEAE T 2 -

At the two meetings, the Investment Committee reviewed the
execution of the investment policy by the management and the
portfolio of the Company’s investment.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of one Non-executive
Director and four Independent Non-executive Directors. The main
responsibilities of the Committee are to ensure and uphold good
corporate governance functions of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(v)

MREHL  REAZESRNEERHRERR
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(4) Board Committees (continued) (4) EEZES ()
(v) Corporate Governance Committee (continued) (v) tEERZEE(H)
During the year of 2014, the Corporate Governance Committee met RIE—NF  PEEARZEQYRITRAE
twice. The attendance of members is as follows: HREBHEXRWNT ¢
Number of
meetings held
while being Number of
a member meetings
BEZERETH attended
Names HE =R P8 HESBRE
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman) 84854 (/&) 2 2
Mr. CHAK Hubert Bkt 2 2
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay [REER e 2 2
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. IS E S A - P, 2 2
Mr. TSE Kam Keung Bk e 2 2
At the two meetings, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed MAgZL  tEERZESRIAEENDLE
the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance, the ERHERER AEENRBBEREFRZ
Group’s whistle-blowing policy and procedure and the relevant T—NFRHREARBERNERGREE
compliance disclosures in the 2014 Interim Report.
(5) Company Secretary (5) ARWE
Mr. CHAN Sze Hei, the Group’s Senior Vice President of Legal & REEREZERARBERBBHREBLEREAR
Compliance, is the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. CHAN AINARMWE -MAEAER T —AF—A—BEZRT
is appointed as the Company Secretary on 1 January 2015. Prior to RARWE  ERZAT ZRELESREARFNA
Mr. CHAN’s appointment, Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred was the Company ﬂﬁdi%i‘% ?%iﬁ@% CEREAMET DRI
Secretary of the Company. Mr. LI has confirmed that during the year SEEV I ST
under review he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training.
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(6) Shareholders’ Rights

0]

(ii)

Convening of Extra-ordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 65 of the Articles of the Company, shareholders
holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carries the right of voting at general meeting of the
Company (the “Requisitionists”) may request Directors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) as provided by Section
113 of the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (Chapter 32)
previously by depositing a written request stating the objects of the
meeting to the Board or the Company Secretary at the registered
office of the Company.

Similar statutory rights are also provided in the new Companies
Ordinance of Hong Kong (Chapter 622) which came into operation
on 3 March 2014 under Sections 566 to 568 regarding the calling of
general meetings.

Procedures for making proposals at Extraordinary General
Meeting

The Requisitionists requesting an EGM are required by the
Company’s Articles to specify his/her information, contact details and
propose the general nature to be dealt with in the general meeting
with supporting documents. All documents must be duly signed by
the shareholders making the request. The requisition may consist
of several documents in like form and may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the EGM.

(6) BRAER
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(ii)

RRBARREFBIAE

RBEARFTBRAMAEESHE - HAEAR TR
RAGBRERNEBEHBATDIR -+ 02 —Hk
RAFBERALD - AAARA B M EE T ESIH
BREMZFERE  BEZEIRAMEYR - E
REEREAEE(AREDDEI2EE 113ED
REBRBRENAE (BREHIAE]) -

—E—FE= A= BERHBEBCARNERDE
622F 5566 % 568158 M A FARE A M 53N
BLEEPGNZS: S

REREASREEBNERF

ARBERAAURE - FREABRFHIAEH
FERANBETRARGER - BEFHE RN R
REEENERN—RIEEER XN - FIF
XM BRI FEROBRIEARE - FREAH
ETRAMRAXHAR - T BEAIRESR
W BB RTINS BE AR ©

Annual Report 2014 —Z—[QFF5R

43



Corporate Governance Report {£¥ &

N
/

2N

[ |

REF

44

(6) Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

(iii) Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

The Requisitionists may send written enquiries either by post, fax or
email, together contact details, such as postal address, email or fax
number, to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office. Upon receipt of such enquiries, the Chief Executive
Officer is required to review them and to organize special Board
meetings to discuss the issues as necessary. The Chief Executive
Officer is also required to reply to all such enquiries in writing.

If the Directors do not within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement proceed duly to convene an
EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the EGM, the Requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM. The EGM must be called for a date
not more than 3 months after the date on which the Directors
become subject to the requirement to call an EGM. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionists by reason of the failure
of the Directors duly to convene an EGM shall be repaid to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

No request for an Extra-ordinary General Meeting and no written
enquiries from shareholders were received during 2014.

(7) Communications with Shareholders and Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its shareholders
to enhance understanding of the Group’s performance and developments.
The Company also arranges one-on-one meeting with Management for
institutional investors, analysts and the media to discuss the Company’s

latest developments.

During the year, the Company held two individual shareholder forums on
11 April 2014 and 12 September 2014 to brief the shareholders on the
2013 annual results and 2014 interim results respectively and the latest
corporate developments. There are 53 individual shareholders attended

the meetings.
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(7) ERRREREERBE(E)

(7) Communications with Shareholders and Investors

(continued)

In 2014, the Company stepped up its investor relations to increase its
exposure to the investment industry. The Company arranged thirty-
seven meetings in which Management met with one hundred and
eighteen institutional investors and analysts. After the announcements
of the 2013 annual results and 2014 interim results respectively, the
Company organized two media luncheons with total 26 finance reporters
and journalists to brief them about the Company’s financial results and
business developments. The Company also organized three media
interviews during the year.

Board members, in particular the Chairmen of the respective Board
Committees, and Senior Management of the Company attended the AGM
held on 9 May 2014 to answer questions raised by shareholders.

(8) Corporate Information on Website

The Company has uploaded the following documents in the corporate
website as well as the website of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited:

(i)  The up-to-date constitutional documents of the Company (i.e. the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company); and

(ii)  The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director.

There was no amendment to the constitutional documents during 2014.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has
its registered office and principle place of business at 11th and 12th Floors,
Tower B, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of front-end GETS
services for processing certain official trade-related documents.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out on Note 16 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to

the major customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year is as
follows:

EFEMARLEFTIFERSE  ZRBE_T—TF
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ITEERMH

AR AR EEREMRLLNESBABORF - A2
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SRS LBELERI2ME -

EERHK

RABEEXFBRIBHERIESE T BT E 5883 H Al
GETSHR# °

AAFMBRRNEEEG MEMFBERNHBRERMZ
16-

FREFRAHER

RAMBFEEEZEP LR RENEENHER L
REERERNT -

Percentage of the Group’s Total

HEREESAENE S
Sales Purchases
SHEHE HEE
The largest customer BAEP 4.6%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAE 10.4%
The largest supplier AL ER 4.9%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AARHEEREE 16.3%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers or suppliers.

Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state of

the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set out in the financial
statements on Pages 63 to 135.
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Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of HK$74,183,000
(2013: HK$80,511,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the
financial statements.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK 4.9 cents
per share (2013: HK 6.2 cents per share) and a special dividend of HK 3.7
cents per share (2013: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 15 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

Shares were issued during the year in exercise of the share options.
Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Executive Directors

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily

Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred (appointed on 9 February 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael
Dr. LEE Delman

Mr. TSE Kam Keung

Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAK Hubert

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan (appointed on 9 February 2015)
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Biographical detail of the Directors at the date of this report are shown on
Pages 22 and 29.
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Directors (continued)

Dr. LEE Delman, Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth, Mr. CHAK Hubert, Mr. CHUNG
Wai Kwok, Jimmy shall retire from office in accordance with Article 100 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. WU Wai Chung,
Michael will retire in August 2015 and will not offer himself for re-election at
the annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. LI
Fuk Kuen, Wilfred and Ms. CHAN Chi Yan, who are appointed during the year,
will hold their offices as Directors until the next annual general meeting of the
Company and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Director’s Interests in Contracts

Dr. LEE Delman was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 29 October
2012 and is the President and Chief Technology Officer for TAL Apparel
Limited and accordingly may be regarded as interested in all contracts and
other dealings between TAL Apparel Limited and members of the Group during
the year under review.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the Company or
its subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Service Contract

During the year, none of the Directors had any existing or proposed service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries and no director proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Details of the three Executive Directors’ and a Non-executive Director’s
employment contracts are set out below.

On 24 June 2009, an employment contract between the Company and Mr.
WU Wai Chung, Michael, was entered into for a period of three year and three
months commencing on 1 October 2009 until 31 December 2012 in relation to
the appointment of Mr. WU to act as Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
On 20 December 2012, Mr. WU’s employment contract with the Company was
extended for a period of two years commencing on 1 January 2013, which can
be terminated by the Company or Mr. WU by giving a three months’ notice
or payment in lieu thereof. To facilitate a smooth transition with Mr. TSE Kam
Keung, the CEO-designate of the Company, the Company and Mr. WU have
reached a mutual agreement to extend Mr. WU’s service to 31 August 2015
before Mr. TSE takes on a full CEO role on 1 September 2015.
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Directors’ Service Contract (continued)

Under the employment contract of 30 August 2004 signed between the
Company and Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, the contract can be
terminated by the Company or Mr. CHENG by giving one month’s notice or
payment in lieu of notice. On 15 November 2011, Mr. CHENG was appointed as
Acting Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and on 26 June 2012,
he was promoted to Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Under the employment contract between the Company and Ms. CHUNG Shun
Kwan, Emily dated 20 March 2008, Ms. CHUNG acts as the Chief Operations
Officer of the Company. The contract can be terminated by the Company or Ms.
CHUNG by giving one month’s notice or payment in lieu of notice.

On 3 July 2014, Mr. TSE Kam Keung signed a contract to act as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1 July 2015, for a three-
year term until 30 June 2018, subject to a 3-month written notice to terminate
the contract by either the Company or Mr. TSE. During the first two months of
the three-year term, Mr. TSE will temporarily act as the CEO-designate before
taking on the full CEO role from 1 September 2015.

Directors’ Interest and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P., a Non-executive Director, has a deemed
interest in 6,320,312 shares of the Company through his indirect shareholding
in TAL Apparel Limited and 95,673,000 shares in the Company through his
direct shareholding in Eastex (HK) Limited respectively. Dr. LEE Delman, a
Non-executive Director, has a deemed interest in 47,708,873 shares of the
Company through his indirect shareholding in TAL Apparel Limited. Mr. KIHM
Lutz Hans Michael and Mr. TSE Kam Keung, Non-executive Directors, Mr.
WU Wai Chung, Michael, Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, Ms. CHUNG
Shun Kwan, Emily and Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred, Executive Directors of
the Company, currently hold 2,460,000, 800,000, 4,505,613, 2,755,843,
2,729,362 and 2,639,601 ordinary shares of the Company registered in their
own names respectively as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).

The Directors of the Company are entitled to options under the share option
schemes of the Company, details of which are respectively set out in the
section “Share Option Schemes” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interest or short
positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, any
of its holding company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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Share Award Scheme

On 16 March 2009 (“Adoption Date”), the Board of Directors of the Company
adopted a share award scheme (the “Scheme”) to reward staff above a certain
grade in the Company (“Eligible Employees”). This scheme replaced the Share
Option Schemes previously implemented by the Company.

Under Part 1 of the Scheme, Eligible Employees at assistant manager grade
and above receive an offer from the Company to purchase Tradelink shares
(“Share”) at a discounted price depending on the lock-up period which the
Eligible Employees may choose. Under Part 2, Eligible Employees at Vice
President grade and above receive Shares at nil consideration but subject to a
one-year lock-up period.

The Scheme is valid for 10 years from the Adoption Date (i.e. 16 March 2009)
or until such other date as the Board may decide. Unless the Board otherwise
decides, the total number of Share purchased by the Trustee under the
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the Adoption Date (being 77,830,605 Shares).

At its meeting held on 19 November 2013, the Board of the Company
replaced the Scheme with a new Performance Bonus Scheme and directed
the management of the Company to terminate the Scheme. Since then, the
Company ceased to award shares under the Scheme.

At its meeting held on 25 March 2014, the Board of the Company endorsed
the early release of all the shares locked up under the Share Award Scheme
(the “Locked-up Shares”) to their respective beneficiaries prior to expiry of
the lock-up period. Pursuant to the endorsement of the Board, all the Locked-
up Shares were unlocked and released to the beneficiaries on 1 April 2014
resulting in the winding up of the trust set up for the Share Award Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 2 August 2000, amended
on 11 September 2001 and 26 November 2002 respectively, (“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme on 14 October 2005 (“Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors are authorized to invite
employees of the Group, including its Directors of any company in the Group,
to take up options to subscribe for shares in the Company at a nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 per grant under the share option schemes. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. Each option has a 10 year exercise period.

The share option schemes give the participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company and help motivate the participants to optimize
their performance and efficiency and attract and retain participants whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability of the
Group.

The total number of share options which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under all share option schemes shall not exceed in
aggregate 10% of the issued capital or 77,763,250 shares at the Company’s
listing date, being 28 October 2005 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options
that have lapsed shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The Scheme Mandate Limit may be renewed by
obtaining approval of shareholders in general meeting of the Company
provided that such the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the share option schemes under the
Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed shall not exceed 10% of the shares issued
at the date of approval of such limit (the “Refreshed Limit”). Options previously
granted (which may be cancelled, Lapsed or exercised) shall not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Refreshed Limit.

The Company ceased to grant options to its employees since the replacement
of the Share Option Schemes by the above-mentioned Share Award Scheme
on 16 March 2009, but options granted prior to the replacement are still valid
and enforceable.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Under the pre-IPO share option scheme, no option may be granted to any
grantee, so that the grantee would, taking also into account options previously
granted to him, be entitled to subscribe for more than 25% of the aggregate
number of shares subject to the Pre-IPO share option scheme.

(@) Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme approved on 2 August
2000 and amended on 11 September 2001 and 26 November 2002

The granting of share options commenced on 24 November 2000 and
ceased upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of
the SEHK on 28 October 2005. Commencing from the first, second and
third anniversaries of the listing date, the relevant grantee may exercise
up to 25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the shares comprised in the
option (less any number of shares in respect of which the option has
been previously exercised). The exercise price is the lower of HK$0.9 and
80% of the IPO price. On 28 October 2005, the IPO price was fixed at
HK$1.25 per share.

(b) Pursuant to the grant of option approved on 22 March 2005
At its meeting on 22 March 2005, the Board approved a fresh allotment
of share option under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to all permanent
staff. The grant was made conditional upon the successful listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the SEHK. The terms are the
same as those for the grants as stated above, except that the exercise
price shall be equal to the IPO price or HK$1.25 per share.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Post-1PO Share Option Scheme

At the general meeting of the Company held on 14 October 2005, the
shareholders approved and adopted a share option scheme (including the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme) (“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”).

Under this share option scheme, the Board has the absolute discretion to
offer any employees (whether full-time or part-time), directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors), consultants, business associates
or advisers of the Company or any company within the Group options to
subscribe for shares, provided that the total number of shares issued or to be
issued to any one grantee in any 12 month period does not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. The share options granted under the share
option scheme vest after 12 months, 24 months and 36 months to exercise
25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the share options. The subscription
amount payable in respect of each share option upon exercise of an option is
determined by the Board and may not be less than the greater of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the SEHK’s daily quotation sheet on the
date, which must be a business day, written on such option (“the Date of
Grant”);

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK'’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

At its meetings on 19 March 2007 and 14 April 2008 respectively, the Board
approved an allotment of share options under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme to all permanent staff in accordance with the terms stated above.

Starting from 2009, the foregoing Share Option Schemes were discontinued
and replaced by the above-mentioned Share Award Scheme. However, share
options previously awarded under these Share Option Schemes remain valid,
subject to the same terms and conditions.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share Option Scheme 2014

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 9 May 2014 (the “Share
Option Scheme 2014”) whereby the Directors of the Company are authorised
to invite employees of the Group, including its Directors of any company in the
Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares in the Company at a nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 per grant under the Share Option Scheme 2014.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme 2014 is:

(a) to assist the Company to attract and retain the best available personnel;
and

(b) to provide additional incentives to employees, directors, consultants,
business associates and advisers to promote the success of the Group;

by providing them with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company
through an offer of grant of Options. The Shares subject to the Share Option
Scheme 2014 will be identical in nature with the other Shares of the Company.

The total number of share options which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme 2014 shall not exceed
in aggregate 10% of the issued capital of the Company at its adoption date,
being 9 May 2014 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options that have lapsed
shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate
Limit. The Scheme Mandate Limit may be renewed by obtaining approval of
shareholders in general meetings of the Company provided that such total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme 2014 under the Scheme Mandate
Limit as renewed shall not exceed 10% of the shares issued at the date of
approval of such limit (the “Refreshed Limit”). Options previously granted
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised) shall not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Refreshed Limit.

The Board has the absolute discretion to offer any employees (whether full
or part-time), directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors),
consultants, business associates or advisers of the Company or any company
within the Group options to subscribe for shares, provided that the total
number of shares issued or to be issued to any one grantee in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. The grantee
shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant
upon acceptance of the offer of an option. Each option has a 10-year exercise
period.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share Option Scheme 2014 (continued)

The subscription amount payable in respect of each share option upon
exercise of an option shall be determined by the Board and shall be not less
than the greater of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the SEHK’s daily quotation sheet on the
date, which must be a business day, of a written offer of such option (the
“Date of Grant”); and

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK'’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Date of Grant.

At its meeting on 24 June 2014, the Board approved an allotment of share
options under the Share Option Scheme 2014 to certain individuals (the
“Grantees”) entitling them to subscribe for a total of 12,200,000 ordinary
shares of the Company. The terms are the same as those stated above.
Commencing from the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant
of the option, the relevant Grantee may exercise up to 25%, 50%, 75% and
100% respectively of the shares comprised in the option (less any number of
shares in respect of which the option has been previously exercised).
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Share Option Schemes (continued) B AESTEI(E)
Share Option Scheme 2014 (continued) —E-FERESTEI(E)

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors and employees of the Company had R-IZE—ME+-_A=1+—H AQAEENEEHEATX
the following interests in options to subscribe for shares of the Company Fro Al BB AN A R M BB A A i = - 5 RERBRR AR TR AR
granted for nil consideration under the share option schemes of the Company. NEBRIETTEIATRERLE - GREBRER T EHFE AR
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of RHE— AR ANA B EEARARER] o

the Company.

Effect
of options
lapsed upon No. of
termination of options
No. of options employment/ outstanding
outstanding expiry of the asat Market
asat 1 January No. of options 10-year 31 December value
2014 No. of options exercised  exercise period 2014 per share
W-E-BE  granted during dwing  EREZE/ H-E-DE Exercise on exercise
-A-H the year the year TETES tZA=t-B Exercise price of options”
HALTHER RN EROEN ERMANS CERINL:] Date granted period pershare  BRETER
EREHE BhRE"E BRERR  BRENYE BhRE"E RHAH i SRITEE SREANHE
HKS HKS
R BT
Directors £
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SBS, JP.  ZJyEE L SBS, JP. - 900,000 - - 900,000 30006/2014 10years 190 -
“E-MERAZTH TF
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michae! KIHM Lutz Hans Michagl - 700,000 - - 700,000 3000612014 10 years 190 -
“E-MERAZTH TF
Dr. LEE Delman el h - 200,000 - - 200,000 3000612014 10 years 19 -
“E-MERAZTH TE
Mr. TSE Kam Keung Eil v - 200,000 - - 200,000 3000612014 10years 19 -
“E-MERAZTH TF
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth LS ¢ i - 200,000 - - 200,000 30006/2014 10years 190 -
“E-MERAZTH TF
Mr. CHAK Hubert Bkt - 900,000 - - 900,000 30006/2014 10years 190 -
“E-MERAZTH TF
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay FiEREE - 500,000 - - 500,000 3000612014 10years 19 -
“E-MERAZTH TF
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy BRELL - 800,000 - - 800,000 3000612014 10 years 190 -
“E-MERAZTH TF
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, JP. A% P, - 900,000 - - 900,000 300612014 10years 190 -
“E-MERAZTH TE
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michae! REEEE - 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 3000612014 10years 19 -
“E-MERAZTE TE
Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew ~ EJf5E% 4 - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 3000612014 10years 19 -
“E-MERAZTH TE
Mis. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily el 415243 - (150,000) - 265,243 19/03/2007 10years 142 180
“ERHECATNA TE
- 500,000 - - 500,000 30006/2014 10years 190 -
“E-MERAZTH TE
Employees [ 2,165,123 - (1,426,270) (1,507) 727,346 1411012005 10years 1.5 19
e 18
2,020,863 - (834,755) - 1,136,108 19/03/2007 10years 142 189
ZETHEZATAR TE
619,509 - (290,255) - 329,254 1410412008 10years 1.01 218
%)\ mATRA TE
- 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000 30106/2014 10years 190 -
“S-MERA=TH TE
Total - 5210738 12,200,000 (2,751,280) (1,507) 14,657 951
A being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares A B R BN @R AL EEARET TR B BRRT A0 IR IO U TS ©

immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share Option Scheme 2014 (continued)
The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names of the
Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the
weighted average value per option is provided in Note 1(p)(ii) and 25(a)(ii) to
the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, or
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interest in the Company’s
issued shares as at 31 December 2014 amounting to 5% or more of the
ordinary shares in issue:

B ESTE ()

—E-mERRESEAE)
RTEENBEREDAEENELER  MEETAERE
BA-

ERCEHBRENSHBRLERBIREN IEFHEE
B E KL D R BB FE ¥RIRA L 1 (p) (i) B 72 25(a) (i) ©

B EXCRTAN - REREAIRTRE - AR R SENMB QRS
FISEMZHE - BUEAARE SR EBE AR R S M EA
ENBRER A TS FE

TERRREMA L REHRAABRE OE
HEHR

RAFEFR_Z—HF+A=+—BHEAARRAEET
P& fn R 2 B B AT IBARD % SA ERORRER T

Ordinary shares

LER
Corporate/
individual % of total
Registered interests Number issued shares
shareholders AR of shares {2 RTRH
BRRER BARER 37k 4G BwEESL
Substantial Shareholders FERK
South China (Jersey) Holdings Ltd. South China (Jersey) Holdings Ltd. - 101,125,000 101,125,000 12.75%
TAL Apparel Limited GERKRERAT 101,125,000 - 101,125,000 12.75%
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. ZTyEE L - SBS., J.P. - 95,673,000 95,673,000 12.06%
Eastex (HK) Limited Eastex (HK) Limited 95,673,000 - 95,673,000 12.06%
Other Persons Hit At
Nil i

The register of interest in shares and short positions kept under Section 336 of
the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by South China (Jersey) Holdings
Ltd. is the same as the 101,125,000 shares disclosed by TAL Apparel Limited,
its 100% owned subsidiary; and the interest disclosed by Dr. LEE Nai Shee,
Harry, S.B.S., J.P., is the same as the 95,673,000 shares disclosed by Eastex
(HK) Limited, his 100% wholly owned company.

Apart from the above, the Company had not been notified by any person
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2014, which was recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

BARDRIRIE B H & HE 50 336158 E BT MR GH R
Mok A B MATR  South China (Jersey) Holdings Ltd. B
BME R ENXER AR (E2ENBRR)FTEEN
101,125,0000% & 15 BRI —#ERx 15+ RFT9EE L - S.B.S,,
J.P AT B R AE LS B2 Eastex (HK) Limited (X2 &M B R AT
5 /95,673,000 % A% {7 B8 Rl — #LAR 17

B EXPraish - BE—F-MET-A=1+—H  BEIM
ATHEARRE - RREBEEREES M ERIIFE33615
MRERTHENELMAARARBRM RABBERD NS

A -
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions

There are no connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
pursuant to the Listing Rules during the year of 2014.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The Company did not have any bank loans and borrowings as at 31 December
2014.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on Page 136 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. Particulars of this retirement scheme
are set out in Nofe 24 to the financial statements.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of

the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors to
be independent.
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Auditors

The Company’s auditor, KPMG, will retire at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SB.S., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its listed securities other than those purchased or sold under
the Share Award Scheme.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from 6 to 8 May 2015, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered to
determine the shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 8 May 2015. All transfer of shares accompanied by
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investors Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 pm on 5 May 2015.

The Register of Members will also be closed from 14 to 18 May 2015, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the final and special dividends, all transfer of shares
accompanied by share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, no later than 4:30 pm on 13 May 2015.
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Report of the Auditors #Z EEish &=

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—FE+ - =+—HILFE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 63 to 135, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
T Ef = =+ —HIFEE

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss #=& g% &

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B F—FEF = A=+ —HILFE

2014 2013
=i —T=%
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
liopia BETT BETT
Turnover [=E 25 3 226,293 230,006
Interest income FEUWA 14,370 11,863
Other net income HAp a5 5 5,722 13,837
Cost of purchases BRBE AR AR (17,730) (21,295)
Staff costs BB 6(a) (101,280) (90,756)
Depreciation e (8,935) (9,997)
Other operating expenses Higem (34,794) (37,553)
Profit from operations RRGRF 83,646 96,105
Share of results of associates NI 6,888 120
Share of result of joint venture FriG& & RnrRIZEE (409) (2,750)
Impairment loss on interest in associate RERE AR R 2R EEE 17 (3,000) -
Impairment loss on interest in joint venture REER TR REEE 18 (1,280) -
Profit before taxation BRELATER 6 85,845 93,475
Taxation A /(@) (11,662) (13,027)
Profit for the year REERR 74,183 80,448
Attributable to: MR ALHER :
Equity shareholders of the Company AATRERFBA 74,183 80,511
Non-controlling interest JEFER R RS - (63)
Profit for the year AEEEF 74,183 80,448
Earnings per share (HK cents) ERBAGEWL) 14
Basic HAR O8S 104
Diluted e 9.3 10.2

The notes on pages 72 to 135 form part of these financial statements. Details FENEEFIBERMEERMBREN—HD - BAFE
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the A B FEIR N AR IR AERE A AR B B ST
profit for the year are set out in Note 12. 12
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
B F—FEF = A=+ —HILFE

2014 2013
e E3 ==
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt BT T BT
Profit for the year REEER 74,183 80,448
Other comprehensive income for the AEEHMEEKER
year (after tax and reclassification (BB REH D EARRE) :
adjustments):
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ Hig&sk@EHHEE
profit or loss: BmERMIER -
Exchange differences on translation of: HMRE TR IBRSAE K Z5 -
— financial statements of PRC operations — R B SRS R B A R (329) 3,254
— non-controlling interest — IR RS - 18
Available-for-sale debt securities: net A EERES
movement in fair value reserve AT EREBEEFRE 13 (3,062) (9,208)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZEKRREEE 70,792 74,512
Attributable to: AT AL FE, :
Equity shareholders of the Company /NG 2= =N 70,792 74,557
Non-controlling interest JEEAR MR - (45)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZERREEE 70,792 74,512

The notes on pages 72 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Z2 & Bt #& AR TR

As at 31 December 2014
RZF—WEF=—H=4+—H

2014 2013
—F-—MmE ==
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT T BET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 15(a) 30,607 36,673
Goodwill fEES 9,976 9,976
Interest in associates PGt & A a) s 17 101,511 98,601
Interest in joint venture Frig & & A rlEn 18 - 1,832
142,094 147,082
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables FEURBR X 20 23,310 18,057
Other receivables and prepayments H b el 008 R FE N B 21 44,391 42,072
Other financial assets HuBI A E 19 288,235 289,444
Deposits with bank RITER 3,727 4,897
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREE 110,317 108,947
469,980 463,417
Current liabilities REEE
Trade creditors, accounts payable and FERTERIR « BRI R
other payables HAbRER R 22 226,625 231,082
Taxation iIE 8(a) 4,889 2,454
231,514 233,536
Net current assets REEERE 238,466 229,881
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBERE 380,560 376,963
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Provision for long service payments RERGEE 23 3,017 2,954
Deferred taxation IEFEFRIE 8(b) 415 1,053
3,432 4,007
NET ASSETS HEFE 377,128 372,956
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As at 31 December 2014
R=FE—EF+=—H=4+—H

2014 2013
—F-—MmE ==

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT T BT

Capital and Reserves EXRRFHE
Share capital R A 26(b)(i) 293,532 158,058
Reserves H#E 83,596 214,898
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 377,128 372,956

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March
2015.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SB.S., J.P.
Chairman

WU Wai Chung, Michael
Executive Director

The notes on pages 72 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

BrEEAIR R AR

As at 31 December 2014
RZF—WEF=—H=4+—H

2014 2013
—F-—MmE ==
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT T BET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 15(b) 29,672 35,711
Interest in associates PR E &N BIRERS 17 76,601 79,601
Interest in subsidiaries PRI /B A FlERS 16 88,534 49,005
194,807 164,317
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEURBRIR 20 14,442 12,646
Other receivables and prepayments HipelskiE R IE R E 285,565 282,731
Deposits with bank RITER 2,700 3,879
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEE 97,817 101,075
400,524 400,331
Current liabilities REEE
Trade creditors, accounts payable and FERBRER  FEN B R
other payables E At JES5RIE 22 221,513 224,202
Taxation I 8(a) 5,526 2,480
227,039 226,682
Net current assets REEERE 173,485 173,649
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBER 368,292 337,966
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Provision for long service payments RERGeEE 23 2,737 2,679
Deferred taxation IREFEIE 8(b) 376 951
3,113 3,630
NET ASSETS BEEE 365,179 334,336
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Statement of Financial Position Bf#& iR =/

As at 31 December 2014
R=FE—EF+=—H=4+—H

2014 2013
—E—0F ==

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT T BT

Capital and reserves EXRRFHE
Share capital R A 26(b)(i) 293,532 158,058
Reserves H#E 71,647 176,278
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 365,179 334,336

e
Al

F

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March KEFEN T -RAF= A= TOAMERITETE -

2015.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. *E

Chairman ZNEELT - sBS, JP.

WU Wai Chung, Michael HITEE

Executive Director R

The notes on pages 72 to 135 form part of these financial statements. FE72EEE 1358 AIM BRI BIREN—BH o

68  Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited & ZiBET &S HRA A



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Za RS HR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
T Ef = =+ —HIFEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRARESEARL
Shares
held for
Share Fair Non-
Share Share Award Capital Exchange value Retained controlling Total
capital premium Scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity
BRS
L4 ]
i KA%E  HENRG EREE EifiE LTERE REER B FERER BREE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vi3 BRI BT AT TR W ¥R ¥R ¥t BT R8T
As at 1 January 2013 R=%-z£-A-R 156,718 122.3% (15,031) 4839 7,263 9,648 72617 358,448 52 358,970
Changes in equity for 2013 “E-CENRAREEE
Dividends approved in LEREHERS
respect of the previous year 1% - - - - - - (54,328) (54,328) - (54,328)
Isste of new shares ETHRH 26(0)(i) 1,340 8723 - (1,867) - - - 8,19 - 8,19%
Equity-setled share-based NRESEORARS
transactions - - - 2550 - - - 2550 - 2550
Disposal of unallocated shares HERARRS - - 7464 - - - 8,804 16,268 - 16,268
Changes in shares held for share BRGRBEREORED
award scheme - - (2.828) - - - - (2.828) - (2.828)
Viesting of awarded shares BERHE - - 2173 (510) - - (45) 1618 - 1618
Lapse of share options BIRIERN - - - (58) - - 58 - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary LENBAR - - - - - - - - (477) (47)
Profit for the year FEREH - - - - - - 80511 80511 (63) 80448
Other comprehensive AEREM2EME
income for the year - - - - 3254 (9,208) - (5,954) 18 (5,936)
Total comprehensive TEE2ENGLE
income for the year - - - - 3204 (9,208) 80,511 74557 (45) 74512
Dividends declared in respectof the  KEER R REERS
current year 2 - - - - - - (31,525) (31,525) - (31,525)
As at 31 December 2013 and RoF-Z£+ZR=1-RRk
1 January 2014 —5-mE-A-R 158,058 131,117 (8222) 4,954 10,517 440 76092 372,956 - 37295
Changes in equity for 2014 “3-MENRAEEED
Dividends approved in LERRHERS
respect of the previous year 2 - - - - - - (49,115) (49,115) - (49,115)
Issue of new shares RRG 26(b)(i) 4,152 205 - (812) - - - 3,545 - 3,545
Equiy-settled share-based WREEENRHRS
transactions - - - 3821 - - - 3821 - 3821
Transition to no-par value regime R-Z-ME-AZREER
on 3 March 2014 SEERRE 26(0)() 131322 (131,322 = = = = = = = =
Vesting of awarded shares HERAEE - - 8,222 (6,548) - - 2,001 3,675 - 3,675
Lapse of share options BlERH - - - (1) - - 1 - - -
Profit for the year REEER = = = = = = 74,183 74,183 = 74,183
Other comprehensive REREMEEYE
income for the year - - - - (329) (3,062) = (3,391) = (3,391)
Total comprehensive income for FERRENGEE
the year - - - - (329) (3,062) 74,183 70,792 - 70,792
Dividends declared in respectof the  AEERRERERS
current year 2 - - - - - - (28,546) (28,546) - (28,546)
As at 31 December 2014 R-®-mE+=A=t-A 293,532 - - 1414 10,188 (2,622) 74,616 377,128 - 377,128

The notes on pages 72 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

N
Jein

o>
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Hp

=

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—FE+ - =+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E—0F ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Operating activities TR
Profit before taxation KRBT T 85,845 93,475
Adjustments for: SHE -
Depreciation e 8,935 9,997
Net (gain)/loss on disposals of fixed assets HEBTEEE W) BEFE (145) 66
Interest income FLEWA (14,370) (11,863)
Share of results of associates Frib s & A R (6,888) (120)
Share of result of joint venture FR B & ARIEE 409 2,750
Equity-settled share-based payment DAPSAE AR A0 AR A7 B i A S A+ 3,821 2,550
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) PE 5 18 (Was ) # 5 2,559 (2,802)
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale debt securities HEMHREEEHELSNNZEFEE (5,722) (6,731)
Impairment loss on interest in associate RERE R B R 2 REEE 3,000 -
Impairment loss on interest in joint venture REER AR RERIE 1,280 -
Gain on disposal of an associate HEBEQTITEKES - (7,000)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBATFEWES - (106)
Operating profit before changes in working capital RtEEE SR B AR ER 78,724 80,216
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables and FEMARSR - ELfh PR IE R IB T 5KIB
prepayments (3gm),/ @ (7,219) 8,393
Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors, accounts payable FERTBRTR © FENTFRIE R HoAth FE 5B
and other payables 20, CRiA) 2,256 (11,077)
Decrease in customer deposits received Bl EFIESRD (3,113) (3,592)
Net payment for purchase of shares for Share Award Scheme &%) #2E) st 215 A BRI 50 F 28 - (2,828)
Proceeds from disposal of shares for Share Award Scheme AR 88521 H S D Frig a0E - 16,268
Cash generated from operations BREEENRSE 70,648 87,380
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHBENER (9,843) (15,195)
PRC tax paid B ERIE (148) (474)
Net cash generated from operating activities RS EHEENESTE 60,657 71,711
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—FE+ - =+—HILFE

2014 2013
e E3 —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Investing activities REFE
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale debt securities & A it HE & EHFERIE 215,987 175,736
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale debt securities AN S EFE ST N IR (214,883) (199,653)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets HEBEEEMSHE 150 -
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BERTEEMY A (2,874) (5,360)
Interest received = U B 13,975 10,437
Dividend received from an associate B U N BRI RS 860 4741
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HEBA AT FRSHIE = 7,000
Net cash outflow from disposal of a subsidiary HEWBAREENRERLFE - (387)
Receipts/(placement) of deposits with bank WER(FEA)RITER 1,614 (1,173)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities RETEBAELE(FTA)BSFE 14,829 (8,659)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from shares issued under share option schemes 1R ¥ HE BdiE st 2|21 TRR D TS 1B 3,545 8,196
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company ENARRRERFB ARRE (77,661) (85,853)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEBHFTANRSFE (74,116) (77,657)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents BERBAESE/EEM R )5 1,370 (14,605)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January R—A—BWEAESRASEHE 108,947 123,552
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December Rt-A=+—HANBEERELZE 110,317 108,947

The notes on pages 72 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

72

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for
this financial year and the comparative period continue to be those
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in
accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11
to that Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 EEEHEEEGER)
(b) BASHE AL

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale
debt securities, which are stated at their fair value (Note 1(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. Major sources of
estimation uncertainty are disclosed in Note 2.

RE—T-mFT=A=+— B EENGAH
BREOEARERAR B EHEATRAE
DS -

RIS RER FTE BT B R B £ AL
BRI EEBESFRIN - HUARTEYIRRM
1)) »
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T RBRE BB R KT RAEE -
BE  WARBXOEE - ZFhTRERRR
DREBECHRLERERERZEBERTIE
EEMNEBEMEARMEL - AESERBKER
BESEAELMRRENEERABNREE
RV A BT A B - BRI ok & A B EH B
>

AEEFER AR R RR LA - &
FHEFTME S MEZEEH - AIERSHEEE
BN E HIRER o AR AT ESTEE!
RARHRE - AIERE S EE BN E BRI
& R HER - EEGE LR T EEEN T EEH
TR 25
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

e Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

e  Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment
entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those parents which
qualify to be an investment entity as defined in the amended HKFRS
10. Investment entities are required to measure their subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss. These amendments do not have an
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the Company does not
qualify to be an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements
for impaired non-financial assets. Among them, the amendments
expand the disclosures required for an impaired asset or cash
generating unit whose recoverable amount is based on fair value less
costs of disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Transaction fees, handling fees and registration fees
Revenue is recognised when services have been provided to
customers.

(ii) Annual subscription fees
Revenue is recognised on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the period of the subscription.

(iii) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Revenue recognition (continued)

(e)

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(v) Services income
Services income is recognised when the relevant services have
been provided to customers and is after deduction of any trade
discounts and other necessary costs of services.

Fixed assets

The following items of fixed assets are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation (or
amortisation) and impairment losses (Note 1(k)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease (see Note 1(j));

— interest in leasehold land; and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Leasehold improvements lower of 5 years or
the remaining term of the lease
Platform hardware and software,

computer and office equipment 3-5years
Motor vehicles 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Building 20 years

Leasehold land unexpired term of the lease
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

1 FEEFBEE)

(d) WzmeEss (&)

(e)

(iv) FISWA
FIBUA TR A B F AN Rt ER o

) BRBKA
RIFWA TR R PR ARRI AR ISR - A4S
HBRAE S 5390 e BoA B 75 BRI B AR FE

7
s

EE&E
THEFEEERB R ERARIZRAERER
sHoT e (S sH) SORE R IR (MYa1(k)) PRk

— HEERYRNEEL BT MEL
FEEBEERGE AT BEE T AT ED
Mt B(RMEE1))

— THETiEE &
- HibEEREREEA -
BEIHEETEERAMELNEE - HHE

PRSFURFEEARARREEIMNER - I
RIS E AR RPER -

Bl AR B TR B AR R (2
AT I E (I ) LA 4 SLAR A (3T S8
£ BT

REmELEE S sk FIERTA AR
(AEEE B%E)

F A R
BRARBAERME 3-5%F
e 3%
FRRREE 54
BT 204
fAE+i K ERALTF

E-EDE - BEERENES B TR AE
REH - WHEAZBINRABIZGEERD
i mEao BIEERTE - BENA EHBFH
RERBEENE) ESFETRE -

Annual Report 2014 —Z—[QFF5R

75



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

76

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Note 1(m) depending on the
nature of the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

)]

(g

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(i) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture (see Note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses (see Note
1(k)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company
and other parties, contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see Notes 1(h) and (k)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate

or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of

a financial asset (see Note 1(i)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, its investments in
associates and joint venture are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 1(k)), unless classified as held for sale (or included in a

disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

(h) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in

the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Goodwill (continued)

0]

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see Note 1(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt and
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined that the
fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does
not include any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in Note
1(d)(iir) and (iv).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(k)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

()

Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)
Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale debt securities. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(k)). Dividend income from
equity securities and interest income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policies set out in Notes 1(d)(iii) and (iv),
respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of debt securities are also recognised
in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see Note 1(k)),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring interest in leasehold land is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale debt securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

—  For investment in associates and joint ventures accounted
for under the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see Note 1(g)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance with
Note 1(k)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance with
Note 1(k)(ii).

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale debt securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
in the Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see Note
1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently, the
increase is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

(I) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see Note
1(k)(1)).

(m) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(o)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Income tax (continued)
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities
on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(p) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits that are
due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service.
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share based payments

Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme

The fair value of share options and awarded shares
granted to employees in an equity-settled share based
payment transaction is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. In respect of share options, the fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. In respect of awarded shares,
the fair value is based on the closing price at the awarded
date and any directly attributable incremental costs. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to those share options
and awarded shares, the total estimated fair value of the
share options and awarded options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share based payments (continued)

— Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme
(continued)
During the vesting period, the number of share options
and awarded shares that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options and awarded shares
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount for the share
options is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

(iii) Shares held for Share Award Scheme

The shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
(“the Scheme”) are acquired from open market. The net
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held for Share
Award Scheme” and deducted from total equity. When the
awarded shares are transferred to the awardees upon vesting,
the related weighted average cost of the awarded shares vested
are credited to “Shares held for Share Award Scheme”, and
the related employment costs of the awarded shares vested
are debited to the capital reserve. The difference between the
related weighted average cost and the related employment
costs of the awarded shares is transferred to retained profits.
Where the shares held for Share Award Scheme are revoked
and the revoked shares are disposed of, the related gain or
loss is transferred to retained profits, and no gain or loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B 5BEFE 5 ERAR]
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 FEEFBEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Employee benefits (continued)

(p) EEEF(H)

(iv) Provision for long service payments

Provision is made for potential long service payment obligations
that may arise upon cessation of employment of the Group’s
employees in the future, to the extent that there is a reasonable
probability that the amounts are likely to become payable.
Such provisions are made on a systematic basis, taking into
consideration the salary and years of service of the employees
who may qualify for such payments in the future based on their
past services rendered.

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in Note 1(r)(a).

(vii) A person identified in Note 1(r)(a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the

entity).
Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Accounting estimates and judgements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty in relation to the preparation of
these financial statements are as follows:

Goodwill

Note 16(a) discloses management’s judgement in relation to the
identification of the Group’s E-commerce segment as the appropriate
cash generating unit for goodwill impairment assessment. Further to
that, management takes into consideration the projected volume and
activity level and cash flows of the E-commerce businesses, discounted
to present value at a risk-adjusted discount rate. These projections
are based on assumptions that take into consideration management’s
knowledge of the business environment and their judgement on future
performance. There is inherent uncertainty in the estimation process and
the underlying assumptions relating to the future, and accordingly actual
performance may differ significantly from the projection.
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Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Investment in associates

The Group reviews internal and external sources of information at the
end of each reporting period of identify indications that the Group’s
interest in Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science & Technology Service
Company Limited (“Nanfang”) and China International Data Systems Co.,
Ltd (“Guofurui”), associates of the Group (Note 17), may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no long exists or may have
decreased. The Group estimates the interest in Nanfang and Guofurui’s
recoverable amount when any such indication exists. The recoverable
amount of the interest in Nanfang and Gurfurui, or of the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its net selling price and value
in use. In assessing whether these is any impairment in the carrying
value of the Group’s interest in Nanfang and Guofurui, management may
take into consideration the projected volume and activity level, future
growth rate, and cash flows of the underlying business of Nanfang and
Guofurui, discounted to present value at the risk-adjusted discount rate.
These projections are based on assumptions that take into consideration
management’s knowledge of Nanfang and Guofurui’s business
environment and their judgement on future performance and underlying
risks. There is inherent uncertainty in the estimation process and the
underlying assumptions relating to the future, and accordingly actual
performance may differ significantly from the projection.

Turnover

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of front-end
Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”) for processing certain
official trade-related documents. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
are set out in Note 16 1o the financial statements.

Turnover represents the value of services provided and goods supplied
to customers. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is disclosed in Note 4.

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are set out
in Note 27(a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

Segment reporting

The Board of Directors of the Group reviews the internal reporting by

segments to assess performance and allocate resources. The Group has
identified the following reportable segments:

E-commerce: This segment generates income from processing trade-

Security

solutions:

Other
services:

related government documents and business-related

documents. It can be further divided into two sub-
segments as follows:

GETS

Digital Trade and
Transportation
Network
(“DTTN")
services

This sub-segment generates income
from customers using Tradelink’s
electronic front-end solutions for
processing certain government trade-
related documents.

This sub-segment generates income
from the electronic logistics platform
for facilitating information flows
among the trade logistics and finance
industries.

This segment generates income from the provision of

security products, digital certificates and security solutions.

This segment comprises handling fees for the conversion

of paper form to electronic messages, income from the

provision of technical support and other project services.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with

reference to sales generated and the expenses incurred by those

segments. The measure used for reporting segment results is profit before

interest, taxation and depreciation.
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 ZHEHE(E)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments results as
provided to the Board of Directors for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 is set out below.

HE-_Z-—-MNER-_ZT—=F+_"F=+—HIIFE
AN AEERESSRENI SRS BEEERDT -

31 December 2014

S

E-commerce
ETHE Security Other
GETS  DTTN services  solutions services Total
DTTNERYE REZHR H R st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BETT
Turnover from external customers HINEFEEE 173,794 11,687 22,495 18,317 226,293
Inter-segment turnover DEEE FERE - 312 6,841 6,019 13,172
Reportable segment turnover WE2RDIPEERE 173,794 11,999 29,336 24,336 239,465
Elimination of HEH D BP & 35
inter-segment turnover (13,172)
Consolidated turnover REEER 226,293
Reportable segment profit o 2|7 IR 54,990 5,963 664 13,429 75,046
Interest income FBWA 14,370
Other net income HA Y FER 5,722
Depreciation E (8,935)
Share of results of associates PG & A B 4R 6,888
Share of result of joint venture b6 & AR EE (409)
Impairment loss on interest in REE R EIRER 2
associate BIEEE (3,000)
Impairment loss on interest in joint ~ RAEREIERZ
venture BIEEE (1,280)
Unallocated corporate expenses RO EME (2,557)
Consolidated profit before taxation #R&BRFLAT =R 85,845
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 ZHEHE(E)
31 December 2013
—E-=F+ZA=+—A1
E-commerce
EFHE Security Other
GETS  DTTN services solutions services Total
DTTNRR®  REAE H PR “eEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT BT T BT

Turnover from external customers HINEFEEE 168,244 9,820 31,548 20,394 230,006
Inter-segment turnover DEEE FERE - 1,738 6,252 3,699 11,689
Reportable segment turnover WE2|IDPEFERE 168,244 11,558 37,800 24,093 241,695
Elimination of I R & AR

inter-segment turnover (11,689)
Consolidated turnover REEER 230,006
Reportable segment profit o 2|7 IR 46,498 5,047 10,153 15,992 77,690
Interest income FEWA 11,863
Other net income H b s F R 13,837
Depreciation e (9,997)
Share of results of associates PG & A B 4R 120
Share of result of joint venture PR NSIE 3 (2,750)
Unallocated corporate income Ao EERA 2,712
Consolidated profit before taxation 4R&BRFLATEFI 93,475
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5 Other net income 5 HhW=F8E
2014 2013
—B-pmE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale debt securities — H & a] {t H & BB H A U F 48 5,722 6,731
Gain on disposal of investment in an associate HERBE R EIRE S RE = 7,000
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEK B AR SRS = 106
5,722 13,837
Profit before taxation 6 BRBEADEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREBLATHFE R (A
2014 2013
—E—IOF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
(a) Staff costs: (@) [BEMHAK:
Contributions to defined contribution REEFURKGTEINER
retirement plan 2,611 2,430
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses VARR#E 45 E N0 LARR ()
EMT AL
— share option scheme — BT 739 -
— share award scheme — R in 2 Eh =t 2l 3,082 2,550
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEAREMIERN 94,848 85,776
101,280 90,756
(b) Other items: (b) HAIEA :
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETE & 931 894
Depreciation e
— assets held for use under finance lease —RIEREHEHEEANEE 142 142
— other assets —HihEE 8,793 9,855
Operating lease charges in respect of properties MENKESHERY 904 973
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) FE N (Yes ) %5 2,559 (2,802)
Net (gain)/loss on disposals of fixed assets HEBEEEN (KRS, EBEFE (145) 66
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7

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 7

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

(b)

REBERRNAER

(@) GRBERERITES

represents:

2014 2013

—2-mF =

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year NEEEANESRBEE 13,633 12,986
Provision for PRC tax for the year REE R BIERE 209 507
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years A (RREERE) BB R (1,542) 14
Deferred taxation IRAERIR (638) (480)
11,662 13,027

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2014 is calculated at
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year. Taxation for PRC subsidiaries is similarly calculated using the
effective rates of taxation that are expected to be applicable in the

ZTE-NEMESTIEHBEIRFE A ER
R FIE16.5%(ZT—=4F : 16.5% )5t 8 o
BIFT RS A B IEIR A et E - AR IEER
BEERNPENEERERHE -

PRC.
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit (b) REABNEHENTEIHESHER
at applicable tax rates: HERWOT :
2014 2013
—E-mF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Profit before tax R T AT A 85,845 93,475
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated at RIEEEEGER SRR =
the rates applicable to profits in the countries SR ADEN T ENZEF 18
concerned 14,368 15,432
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A RS 2 1,623 1,950
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERBRAN T E (2,512) (2,656)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised REERARE AT BB G 549 29
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses utilised FERNEFEFHEBENRETE (537) (2,281)
One-off tax reduction —IRBIE (20) (20)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years LA (RBRERHE) BT R (1,542) 14
Other differences Eh=%s (267) 559
Actual tax expense HERHIBS N 11,662 13,027
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8 MBMRRERNAEH

8 Income tax in the statement of financial position

(@) MBARRKROETBBIRS :

(@) Current taxation in the statement of financial position

98

represents:
The Group The Company
TEE b N

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—NF =% —E—IOF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT T BT T

Provision for Hong Kong Profits  ANFEE & 15 F:

Tax for the year B 13,633 12,986 13,376 11,746
Provision of PRC tax for the year ZN4FJE rp [ 55 78 B = 33 - -
Provisional Profits Tax paid B EEFIEH (8,744) (10,565) (7,850) (9,266)

4,889 2,454 5,526 2,480

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

(b) EREFNELESIRRE :

ERB TR R R HIRIE IR B B AR D

statement of financial position and the movements during the year RENEBWT -
are as follows:
The Group The Company
REE AT
Depreciation Depreciation
allowances allowances
in excess in excess
of related of related
depreciation depreciation
MEREEE mEEEEE
ERRITE 1HEATEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Deferred tax arising from: FKE FHEBHIEERE -
As at 1 January 2013 R-ZT—=F—HF—H 1,533 1,367
Credited to statement of profit or loss REHERTA (480) (416)
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=+—H 1,053 951
As at 1 January 2014 R=Z-NF—-A—H 1,053 951
Credited to statement of profit or loss AMEFRETA (638) (575)
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZB-NE+=HB=+—8H 415 376
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8 Income tax in the statement of financial position 8 IR RENEH(E)
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (continued) (b) ERRMELEHEEE © (F)
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 1(0), WIEA T 10T ESHEE  AEEL &5t
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of S2HENREEERAELERBEEBE
cumulative tax losses of HK$94,653,000 (2013: HK$94,579,000) as 94,653,000 7T ( = Z — =4 : 7 # 94,579,000
it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses ) REAR KRR AKA] gEES ERR S MM S
can be utilised will be available. The tax losses do not expire under ZEEBESUER - BIBRTHBEG - Ll F
current tax legislation. BEETRERARE -

9 Directors’ remuneration 9 EEfL

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule 11 BRI EBCATHEDIYFE622EMR11E 781K » &2

to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference ERBEACR RGN EIEF I HEHEENESMEFF

to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. (= UNNE

32), is as follows:

Basic salary,  Contributions

allowances and  to retirement Share-based 2014

Fees other benefits schemes Bonus* payments Total
% 7

ERER DY3ips) —2-mE

ne HERl BRI AL ERNZA @t

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BET T BT BETT BT BETT

Executive directors HITES
WU Wai Chung, Michael RER - 4,562 17 2,311 1,552 8,442
CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew  Zf{55a - 2,581 17 788 387 3,773
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily $EIERE - 2,101 17 205 272 2,595
Non-executive directors FHITES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry =E 100 - - - 55 155
LEE Delman ZEAK 70 - - - 12 82
CHAK Hubert B 290 - - - 55 345
CHAU Tak Hay =R 340 - - - 30 370
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy SEHEE 360 - - - 48 408
HO Lap Kee, Sunny V=S 310 - - - 55 365
KIHM Lutz Hans KIHM Lutz Hans

Michael Michael 50 - - - 42 92
TSE Kam Keung FiEGE 310 - - - 12 322
YING Tze Man, Kenneth WFX 50 - - - 12 62
Total st 1,880 9,244 51 3,304 2,532 17,011
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9 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 9 EEME(E)

Basic salary,  Contributions

allowances and  to retirement Share-based 2013
Fees  other benefits schemes Bonus* payments Total
BEXEe
EER VAR5 —T-=%
e Hiigh  RAGEIR fear -SR] st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BRI BT
Executive directors HTES
WU Wai Chung, Michael RiEE - 3,760 15 1,704 1,792 7,271
CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew  Ej{&52 - 2,484 15 1,273 129 3,901
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily ElEEE - 2,058 15 227 112 2,412
Non-executive directors FHTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry 5 90 - - - - 90
LEE Delman R 70 - - - - 70
CHAK Hubert 2 215 - - - - 215
CHAU Tak Hay [REER 250 - - - - 250
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy SEHER 270 - - - - 270
HO Lap Kee, Sunny S & 230 - - - - 230
KIHM Lutz Hans KIHM Lutz Hans
Michael Michael 50 - - - - 50
TSE Kam Keung i 184 - - - - 184
YING Tze Man, Kenneth BFX 50 - - - - 50
Total oy 1,409 8,302 45 3,204 2,033 14,993
* Bonus represented actual bonus paid during the year. * o JEALIEFRNE(THEERTEAT ©
The above emoluments include the value of share options granted and EHIEN S BIED BIREA R B B AR AT B AR (n 48
shares awarded to certain directors under the Company’s share option BET SR TETESNERERER TRENRMDRN
schemes and share award scheme, respectively, as estimated at the date B R B AN EE - FAEYNENFER
of grant and award. Details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under REFEREEBREE | RIIRM EEE 8] FH
the sections “Share Option Schemes” and “Shares Award Scheme” in the DR o

Report of the Directors.
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10 Individuals with highest emoluments

11

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2013: three)
are directors during the year whose remuneration are disclosed in Note 9.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2013: two)

individuals are as follows:

10 &EHAL

FR AEBERFATEE=R2(ZZ—=F: =5%)
EF HWSERWFoHRE - EBREA(ZT—=

FMB)ALTZMEEENT ¢

2014 2013
—B-pmE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other emoluments e REMES 3,177 3,098
Share-based payments AR BB A~ 276 112
Retirement scheme contributions IRIREH B 34 30
3,487 3,240

The emoluments of the above two (2013: two) individuals with the highest FiiREZEaH AT (ZZE—=F : RB)NMHESFAE

emoluments are within the following bands: HENT :

2014 2013
—E-NmF —E—=F
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
HK$ BT A N
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,000,001 — 1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001-2,000,000 1,500,001 —2,000,000 — -
2,000,001-3,000,000 2,000,001 —3,000,000 1 1

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
includes a profit of HK$97,463,000 (2013: HK$80,179,000), which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

11 RESE ARG

AR RIRIERS A AEIGERE 5 7 8 155 1%97,463,000

Jo(ZZT— =4 : #%80,179,0007T) Hi# | - BRA

RAIB AR PR

Annual Report 2014 —Z—[QFF5R

101



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf7&3R &R Kiz

12 Dividends 12 K&

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company @) XEEENETATREEBEANRKE
attributable to the year

2014 2013
—ZT—QNF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Interim dividend declared and paid of HK 3.6 cents B = JE &K &0 7 EAf% 8 5 1% 3651
per share (2013: HK 4.0 cents per share) (ZE—=%F : BR4.081) 28,546 31,525
Final dividend proposed after the end of the BEHEFRE BHTRANF SRR
reporting period of HK 4.9 cents per share FOREARER S BAR4.975 1
(2013: HK 6.2 cents per share) based on issued (ZF—=%F : gk6.2781)
share capital as at the year end 38,859 48,998
Special dividend proposed after the end of the BEHEFRDBEITRARBRERRE
reporting period of HK 3.7 cents per share (2013:  #BR 8945 BIIAL B &A% 3. 77811
Nil) based on issued share capital as —E—F )
at the year end 29,343 -
96,748 80,523
The final dividend and special dividend proposed after the end of the TR B R4 $K B R HA R 5 R IR B R A R 45 HA
reporting period have not been recognised as a liability at the end of KERBAR -
the reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (b) BRE—ENREE  IAFAMER
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and A FARABDREFEANESRE
paid during the year

2014 2013
—F-mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous B E—EMEBFEE - WHERE R
financial year, approved and paid R BYREAAR 2 & R%6. 27541
during the year of HK 6.2 cents per share (ZZE—=%F : §k6.95)
(2013: HK 6.9 cents per share) 49,115 54,328
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13 Other comprehensive income 13 Hib2EWE
Available-for-sale debt securities AHHEEKES
2014 2013
- ST =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Changes in fair value recognised during the year AFEEEHERAZATEE 2,660 (2,477)
Net gain on disposal transferred to profit or loss DEBEERNLEMEKEFE (5,722) (6,731)
Net movement in the fair value reserve during the year B R E 2 KRN ANEE A TE
recognised in other comprehensive income EEES)F58 (3,062) (9,208)
14 Earnings per share 14 SREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit BREABFDBREARREBRBEZTE A
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of JEAE S R B H74,183,000T (ZF— =4 « B
HK$74,183,000 (2013: HK$80,511,000) and the weighted average 80,511,0007T) &AM [E B 27T S MAR A hE 15
number of 789,335,000 ordinary shares (2013: 768,495,000 [i% £1(789,335,000 % ( ==& — =4 : 768,495,000
shares) in issue during the year less shares held for share award %) (BI0R ARG R ES ARG )FE - 7
scheme, calculated as follows: AT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZERMMETLITRE
2014 2013
—E-—mEFE —E—=
'000 ‘000
TR TR
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January MR—A—HDETLER 790,290 783,588
Effect of share options exercised BITERERENTE 1,659 3,285
Effect of share purchase for share award scheme  B&{p 55BN 512108 B I ih 22 (2,614) (18,378)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RT+—A=+—BE@Ei
as at 31 December IR 789,335 768,495
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14 Earnings per share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$74,183,000 (2013: HK$80,511,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 793,177,000 shares (2013:
788,463,000 shares) after adjusting for the effect of the potential
dilution from ordinary shares issuable under the Company’s share
option schemes and share award scheme, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

14 ERER (&)

(b) BREERF

BREFBRFDBRBERAARTBRRESA
N JE A5 ) 74 5 74,183,000 L (=T — =4 -
7 #80,511,0007T ) K & i Ik &9 hn A F 19 ik £
793,177,000 (= Z— =4 : 788,463,0008%) (2
BMARQ RSB AR () BB S8 T A T8 AT
TR BT EIEL R HE - HRw
T

BRI IR B ()

2014 2013
—B-pmE —E-=F
'000 ‘000
Fi Fh&
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ A=+—B8EmahnkE
(less shares held for share award scheme) RS (B 3R AR 2B 5T &
as at 31 December FAERRD) 789,335 768,495
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the BAERIRA A BRI AT &1 34T
Company’s share option schemes Rt Hy 5 2 1,228 1,590
Effect of share award scheme B 1n 2 aT BIRO S 2 2,614 18,378
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+Z A=+ —ArE B INETF RS
(diluted) as at 31 December () 793,177 788,463

104 Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited & ZiBE T & SHERA A



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#5¥R3R M=

15 Fixed assets 15 EE&EE
(a) The Group (a) ~EH
Platform
hardware
and
software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture land held
Leasehold TAEH and for own use
improvements PEGE Motor fixtures BEBAN
RENE EER vehicles GHR Building Subtotal BELH Total
g ROERE RE #E BF it R& @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTT BT BT ERTT BT BETR BT BT

Cost: RA:

As at 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-A-R 11,683 177,530 508 2,978 33,250 225,949 6,018 231,967
Additions NE 426 1,562 886 - - 2,874 - 2,874
Disposals e (351) (199) (508) ) - (1,065) - (1,065)

Asat 31 December 2014  H=E-MF
+=B=t+-8H 11,758 178,893 886 2,971 33,250 227,758 6,018 233,776

Accumulated depreciation: ~ Z3ti7E :

As at 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-A-R 10,348 165,750 508 2,894 14,547 194,047 1,247 195,294
Charge for the year FRRERY 561 6,442 103 24 1,663 8,793 142 8,935
Disposals HE (351) (198) (508) 3) - (1,060) - (1,060)

Asat31 December 2014  H=Z-WE+ZA
=+-H 10,558 171,994 103 2,915 16,210 201,780 1,389 203,169

Net book value: REFE:

Asat 31 December 2014  W=B-Rm%
+-A=1-AH 1,200 6,899 783 56 17,040 25,978 4,629 30,607
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15 Fixed assets (continued) 15 BEEE (&)
(@) The Group (continued) (a) &EE(HE)
Platform
hardware
and
software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture land held
Leasehold TaEH and for own use
improvements Rt Motor fixtures BEEAD
REME EER vehicles FiR Building Subtotal fELi Total
£ HAERE E k& ¥ Nt & &5t

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETL BB BT BETL BRI BETL BETL

Cost: BA:

Asat 1 January 2013 W-E-=F-F-H 10,719 189,156 508 2955 33250 236,588 6,018 242,606
Additions RE 1,019 4318 - 23 - 5,360 - 5,360
Disposals HE (55) (15,944) - - - (15,999 - (15,999)

As at 31 December 2013 RZZ-=F
TZA=t-H 11,683 177530 508 2978 33250 225,949 6,018 231,967

Accumulated depreciation: ~ B3HE

As at 1 January 2013 RZE-Zf-f-H 9926 173983 468 2863 12,885 200,125 1,105 201,230
Charge for the year FRAERR 477 7,645 40 3l 1,662 9,85 142 9,997
Disposals hrt (55) (15,878) - - - (15933) - (15,933)

As at 31 December 2013 WZE-=F
+-A=+-H 10,348 165,750 508 2,.8% 14,547 194,047 1,247 195,294

Net book value: REFE:

As at 31 December 2013 R-E-Z5+2F
=t+-8 1,335 11,780 - 84 18,703 31902 4,771 36,673
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15 Fixed assets (continued) 15 EE&E (&)
(b) The Company O
Platform
hardware
and software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture land held
Leasehold TAEH and for own use
improvements SEGE Motor fixtures BEEAR
RENE EER vehicles GRER Building Subtotal BELH Total
%6 BAERE RE %E B it & ast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT RRTT BT RBTR RRTT BT RBTR BRI

Cost: A

As at 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A-A 11,184 160,571 508 2,850 33,250 208,363 6,018 214,381
Additions RE 2 1,330 886 - - 2,218 - 2,218
Disposals e - (133) (508) - - (641) = (641)

As at 31 December 2014 R-B-mE
+=A=+-8 11,186 161,768 886 2,850 33,250 209,940 6,018 215,958

Accumulated depreciation: ~ Zti7E :

As at 1 January 2014 W-E-mE-A-A 9,929 149,647 508 2,792 14,547 177,423 1,247 178,670
Charge for the year FRAFERY 401 5,931 103 17 1,663 8,115 142 8,257
Disposals e - (133) (508) - - (641) = (641)

As at 31 December 2014 R-B-mE
+=A=+-8 10,330 155,445 103 2,809 16,210 184,897 1,389 186,286

Net book value: REFE:

As at 31 December 2014 R-E-mE
+ZA=t+-H 856 6,323 783 41 17,040 25,043 4,629 29,672
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15 Fixed assets (continued) 15 EE&E (&)
(b) The Company (continued) (b) AT (&)
Platform
hardware
and software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture land held
Leasehold TaBH and for own use
improvements FEGE Motor fixtures BEARN
REME EHR vehicles FHLR Building Subtotal BELit Total
R BRER A RE ¥ it % @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETL BRI BRI BB BRI BETL BB

Cost: A

As at 1 January 2013 W-F-=F-F-H 10,209 172,349 508 2837 33,250 219,153 6,018 225,171
Additions RE 975 4166 - 13 - 5,154 - 5,154
Disposals it - (15,944) - - - (15,944) - (15,944)

As at 31 December 2013 RZE-=F
T-A=t-H 11,184 160,571 508 2,850 33,250 208,363 6,018 214,381

Accumulated depreciation: ~ Z3HE

As at 1 January 2013 R-Z-=F-f-H 9,573 158479 469 2761 12,885 184,173 1,10 185,278
Charge for the year ERFERT 356 7,046 39 25 1,662 9,128 142 9,270
Disposals it - (15878) - - - (15878) - (15878)

As at 31 December 2013 WZE-=F
+-A=+-H 9,929 149,647 508 2,192 14547 177423 1,247 178,670

Net book value: REFE

As at 31 December 2013 WZE-=F
+-f=+-1 1,255 10,924 - 58 18,703 30,940 4771 35,711
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15 Fixed assets (continued)

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:

15 BE&EE (&)

(c) MIRRREVHEDHTAOT :

2014 2013
—B-pmE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
The Group and the Company AEBRAAT BT T BB T
Interest in leasehold land situated in BREEZE-TN-EFEHH
Hong Kong held for own use under FHIFRE - BEERA®
medium-term lease up to 2047 EAHE I iR 4,629 4,771
16 Interest in subsidiaries 16 FribMIE L RER
2014 2013
—E-NmF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost (less impairment loss) JELETRRG - A AEGIRRIRERE) 88,534 49,005

Details of the subsidiaries which principally affected the results or assets

of the Group are as follows:

TEFEAREEEREENNBARFENT

Proportion of Proportion of

Place of ownership ownership

incorporation Particulars of issued interest held by interest held by

and operation and paid up capital the Company a subsidiary
Name of subsidiary company MR R ERTR MEAAREEN dNEAREEN Principal activity
WEARER EEY HRRAFHE HEEERASL HEEEZEIHL TEEH
Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - Certificate authority
ETRERBERRT ) 10,0008 13 services
HERE RS
Trade Facilitation Services Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - Dormant
5 100 EEEH
Digital Trade and Transportation Hong Kong 41,000,000 shares 100% - Provision of electronic
Network Limited ) 41,000,000 5 messaging routing and
YEE S BRREARAT transformation services
RESFHSERR
BARY
Up Forward Technology Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - Investment holding
EERBARAR e 1A 1R REERR
EClink Technology Limited Hong Kong 99 shares 100% - Investment holding
SEAERRARAT % 99K 1R REERR
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16 Interest in subsidiaries (continued)

16 FrbkiE 2 R ()

Proportion of Proportion of

Place of ownership ownership

incorporation Particulars of issued interest held by interest held by

and operation and paid up capital the Company a subsidiary
Name of subsidiary company HMAILR BRTR MEADRREN HNBAREEN Principal activity
WEARER EEHE BRRAFE BEREERASL BHEEEZEIHL TEEH
Tradelink E-Biz Secure Solutions Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares 100% - Secure solutions services
Limited B 1,000,000 17 REHERH

BHREFHKEARERAT

iTradelink eMarket Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - Provision of e-commerce
B 10,0008 13 services
REEFHERS
L RENSBETRERSE PRC HK$8,400,000 100% - Provision of e-commerce
BRAR H 718 400,0007T and e-logistics services
REEFHER
ERRE
REEGBRHERDA PRC RMB500,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AR#500,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHER
ERRE
K2BESHRETREARAR PRC RMB100,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AR#100,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHER
ERRE
REENGBRHRERDA PRC RMB100,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AR¥100,0007 and e-logistics services
RHEEFHER
ERRE
BNEMSBETFRIARARS PRC RMB500,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AR¥500,0007T and e-logistics services
REEFHER
Bk

Each of these is controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(f) and
have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

# Subsidiaries not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total turnover constituting less
than 1% of the respective consolidated totals.

* Company registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.
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16 Interest in subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

The goodwill recognised by the Group arose from the acquisition of
Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited (“DTTNCo0”) in
2009 and is attributable mainly to the technical expertise, intellectual
property, and the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating
DTTNCo into the Group’s existing business and customer base.
The goodwill has a carrying amount of HK$9,976,000 since the
acquisition date of 26 March 2009.

The E-commerce segment of the Group is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition of DTTNCo in entirety, and there are
no other units within the Group that the goodwill can be appropriately
allocated to, the E-commerce segment is identified as the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) containing the goodwill for the purpose of
impairment evaluation of the goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use the CGU’s cash flow
projections based on financial forecasts covering a six-year period.
Cash flows beyond the six-year period are extrapolated using a
medium term growth rate adjusted on the basis of management’s
best estimates. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-
term average growth rates for the business in which the Group
operated. The future cash flows are discounted, at a discount rate
specific to the Group of 10% (2013: 10%) for the assessment
period, to determine the value of the CGU. Based on management’s
assessment, there is no impairment recognised in respect of the
goodwill for the year.

Amount due from a subsidiary

Amount of HK$231,766,000 (2013: HK$236,244,000) due from
a subsidiary included in the Company’s other receivables and
prepayments is unsecured, interest-bearing at a rate not significantly
different from the market and repayable on demand.

Capital reduction of DTTNCo

As at 31 December 2013, the share capital and accumulated
losses of DTTNCo, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, were
HK$135,240,000 and HK$66,126,000 respectively. With effect from
3 March 2014, the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622)
introduced a general court-free procedure based on the solvency
test for a company to reduce its share capital. The amount of capital
reduced is regarded as a distributable profit. In November 2014,
DTTNCo adopted the new capital reduction procedure and reduced
its capital by HK $66,126,000 to set-off the accumulated losses
carried at its capital and reserves accounts. Implementation of the
capital reduction will not alter the net assets and business operations
of DTTNCo.

16 FrbkiE 2 R ()

(a)

(b)

(c)

s
R-ZZZNFUBEBHREEZHEGERERA
(FDTTNCoJ)Fﬁ%iﬂz%¢;€lﬁ§mﬁ@%%$g
TREF R - FMERE R A HDTTNCOZE
AEERBEBREFERZAERNHRR
E- BRI _STNF=A-_+ B &
EHIREE A9,976,0007T °

HRBHEASEETHES AT ERKE
DTTNCo & BB AR R AT 2 A 1 1 (R s+ A0 B R Bk
EEEHESREEAEEEMEN  WETHE
DEERRAEE LIEHENRSEESEL (R
SEAEEN]) - MEA L EELRET -

ReEEBANAKCIEEREEREEFE
EETE  BRBeELBMRENFHENIME
TERIMTERR & METE - NAFHEANENRSR
TyIR¥EE T JE fx (L 5T 38 B 6 rh B R ORI
oo PTEAMIERE U EBA RSB ATLE XS
WRBTEERE - KRB REANEHRAR
SENFERREION(ZF— =4 :10%)
R AETREELBEMNEE - REETEED
Al RAFEERARHERBERE -

& Wi Bf B8 2~ BRI FRIR

AR R R E AR FEUGRIE R IBR RIERE— SRR
B8R R FUIE A K 231,766,0000 ( Z T — =4 ¢
7 15236,244,0007T) B BRIE A EER - 2
TSFIES BIF KT S - WARKERESR

DTTNCoB &

RZBE—=F+-A=+—8 KQ2A2EMH
B ATDITNCORI IR A & Rt 18 5 Al BB K
135,240,000 7t }. 7 # 66,126,000 7C ° 1 =&
— & = A = B AERE T EBCA AR 8622
FERE A RETEMN B DA I A — R AL
BERNER c RESERAIDEET - K=
T—&E+—F  DTINCoFRMFTMERRT + W
B E5%66,126,0007T @ UIKHEEE AR HEER
FPHRERERE - EiEME TS5 DITNCoZ
SFEEREREIE
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16 Interest in subsidiaries (continued) 16 PTG SR (4E)
(d) Write-back of impairment loss of DTTNCo (d) DTTNCoZ B{EEE#E LT

During the period from 2005 to 2009, the Company made provisions RIEERFE2_ZZNF A23a RN
for the impairment loss of its investment in DTTNCo when DTTNCo DTTNCo (I Al & N 7)) 2R AR EE BT R
was an associate. On 26 March 2009, DTTNCo was acquired by the B M _ZETNF=F-1+7xH  DITNCo#
Company and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. AKARWE  KAAARZEWBAR - R
The net investment amount in DTTNCo in the Company’s books T—=F+-_A=+—H ARAStEEH
of accounts as at 31 December 2013 was HK$39,595,000. With DTTNCoZ # & /% 58 /578 # 39,595,000 7T ° M =&
the strong growth of DTTN services in the past four years, the net BEMEFLARDITNE A8 K - DTTNCo
asset value of DTTNCo as at 31 December 2013 increased to RIE—=F+A=t+—HZEEFEEES
HK$69,114,000. To re-align the Company’s investment value with #69,114,0007C - AENABARARRAEEBEE
DTTNCO’s net asset value, a one-off write-back of impairment loss DTTNCoE & FME « — R MERE 2R EEIEAE
at the amount of HK$29,519,000 was credited to the Company’s 29,519,000 Tt AR AR A 9 kA -

distributable reserve.

17 Interest in associates 17 FrihE&E QRS
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F —E-NE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRG - HREAE - - 85,381 85,381
Share of net assets FEILEEFE 94,600 88,657 - -
Goodwill S 9,911 9,944 - -
104,511 98,601 85,381 85,381
Less: Impairment loss R OREEE (3,000) - (8,780) (5,780)
101,511 98,601 76,601 79,601
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17 Interest in associates (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of material associates, all of
which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not
available:

17 FribitE R ()

TR EZHE
MEMELTEEESR

ERRIFE

ZERRYRALETS

Place of Percentage of Percentage of
incorporation Particulars of issued  Group’s effective shares held by
and operation and paid up capital interest the Company
Name of associate HEMRLR ERITRARE AEBFG NG JiE=d Principal activity
BENRER EEE BRAFHE EREREAN RABEAL TEEH
Guangdong Nanfang Haian PRC RMB10,000,000 20% 20% Provision of
Science & Technology Service F AR #10,000,0007T e-commerce services (Note 1)
Company Limited (“Nanfang”) RESTHERBWH1)
EREAEERERBEERAR
::R)
China International Data Systems PRC RMB198,630,000 25.17% 25.17% Provision of
Co., Ltd (“Guofurui”) R AR #198,630,0007T disaster recovery,
HEhEBEZRERARNESER]) business continuity services
(Note 2)
RELBEERK
EBHETRERS
(Hist2)
TEERBRMEARRA ([SCNT) PRC RMB5,000,000 24.5% - IT related services
# AR #5,000,0007T BRRREE RS
LEERHERRTEELERAR PRC RMB30,000,000 24.5% - Supply chain management
(TU-LinkJ) F AR¥30,000,0007T development and services
HERERRR LIRS
EMZBEADRIESRMAERAT PRC RMB1,000,000 49.0% 49.0% Provision of e-commerce
(I ZmEH ) F AR¥1,000,0007T and e-logistics services
RHEEFHER
E&‘T"%muﬁ&%
Note 1: Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science & Technology Service Company Hiatl - BRmAEERHIRE AR AR TR E R R R
Limited, a high-tech company providing advanced e-commerce services EBTEHERFORERAR - e2RBAN M E R
in Guangdong area, enables the Group to have exposure to this market HEAEEE RS EEZTS -
through local expertise.
Note 2: China International Data Systems Co., Ltd (“Guofurui”) is a strategic Hit2 . BBEWEERGERAR(EEN ) HASEEEE

partner of the Group with its principal business is the operation of data
centres in Beijing for the provision of disaster recovery, business continuity
services and other IT outsourcing services.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

o TERUERBURETHOREIGHER - 25T
BILRB RS A TINEIRES -

A LB 2 A RIS RAR ARG S
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17 Interest in associates (continued) 17 Fr{hEE AR (E)
(a) BAERTNBEERBRE
TXHEEMEESHENRZHBEEREE - T
A EAREZERRR (CHETBEE=5E
HAR  YERUEAVERERTNERAE) :

(@) Summary of financial information on associates
Summarised financial information from the unaudited management
accounts of the two principal associates, adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the

consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

Guofurui Nanfang
EEi 2Dz
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F —Z-ImF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT BT
Gross amounts of the associates’ & NAFUTEIE
mE
Current assets TREVEE 85,961 62,821 39,386 51,930
Non-current assets ETEEE 348,946 371,944 85,264 77,374
Current liabilities PEN=KE (73,745) (48,268) (56,747) (63,809)
Non-current liabilities FERBAaE (64,226) (115,317) (634) (1,975)
Equity T 296,936 271,180 67,269 63,520
Revenue &2 188,813 163,719 50,286 54,522
Profit from continuing operations B AR E T 26,574 22,795 8,527 7,138
Total comprehensive income PEWESLEEE 26,574 22,795 8,527 7,138
Dividend received from BUEE R AIRE
the associate - - 860 4741
Reconciled to the Group’s BH A KBTS E
interests in the associates DR
Gross amounts of net assets of B NREESE
the associate k) 296,936 271,180 67,269 63,520
Group’s effective interest AEBEEEER 25.17% 25.17% 20% 20%
Group’s share of net assets of AEEEBE LT
the associate WEETE 74,739 68,256 13,454 12,704
Goodwill RS - - 6,911 9,944
Carrying amount in the REETBERERF
consolidated financial statements R BREE 74,739 68,256 20,365 22,648
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17 Interest in associates (continued)

(a)

(b)

Summary of financial information on associates (continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:

17 FribitE R ()

(a) BERRANPBEREE (F)

FHERERNBERRGAER

2014 2013
—ZT—QNF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Aggregate carrying amount of individually RABEHREF
immaterial associates in the consolidated FEERIE R AIHEE A
financial statements IRE(E L 6,407 7,697
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of those ~ AN&EE (b2 EH 2 QA FIAT&IA
associates’ kL]
Loss from continuing operations BEGEER (1,506) (1,129)
Total comprehensive income ey G (1,506) (1,129)

Impairment loss on interest in associate

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of HK$3,000,000 (2013: Nil) for its interest in an
associate.

Following an assessment of the recoverable amount of the Group’s
investment in Nanfang, the carrying amount of Nanfang was written
down to the recoverable amount of HK$20,365,000. The goodwill in
relation to the interests in Nanfang was impaired by HK$3,000,000.
The estimates of the recoverable amount of Nanfang were based on
the present values of the budgeted future cash flows, discounted
at the market risk-adjusted discount rate of 14%, by reference
to the projected volume, activity level and future growth rates
of the underlying business of Nanfang. The fair value on which
the recoverable amount is based on is catgorised as a Level 3
measurement. The impairment charge was included in “Impairment
loss on interest in associate” in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss.

(b) REE QTR ZBEESE

HE_ZT-—NF+_A=+—HILFE A&
EREATEBE AR ESERREBESLE
3,000,0007T( =T —=4 : ) o

BRAE@REHIRE 2 AR B & REE TR
B 7 2 BRE B R = AT 4R B & 58 7 ¥ 20,365,000
7T o BRAFTE R T R 2 R (B #5 3,000,000
TT o BJ7 ALKl FE Y 2 & R U5 AR B E A A T A
BIE - EBKFERARERE - ERBERRR
SREZIE  R14%H TSR AR R,
Wi ANLAGEEE o AT El S EEATIKIE 2 A EDHE
BEIGETE REBAAGZEBER PR
AR RERE] -
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18 Interest in joint venture

18 Fih&¥ A FER

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=%F —E-mEF —T—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BYET T BT BET T BT
Share of net assets REIEAEFE = 1,832 = -

The following contains the particulars of joint venture, which is accounted
for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements:

TRBINEGERRFE - HRBEDENE S M BER
RARR:

Percentage of

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of  Group's effective shares held by

incorporation issued and interest the Company

and operation paid up capital AEB A KRF
Name of joint venture ALK BETR BRER Frs R Principal activity
- INGET EELE HRRAFHE BAK BAK TEEH
IR TERIRBHRERAF PRC RMB4,920,000 49% - Provision of
H AR#4,920,0007T e-commerce services
REETFHERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of HK$1,280,000 (2013: Nil) for its interest in joint
venture based on the financial situation of the joint venture. As the
recoverable amount of joint venture was less than the carrying amount,
an impairment charge was included in “Impairment loss on interest in
joint venture” in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

19 Other financial assets

HE-Z-NE+-_F=+—ALFE  AEERE
BERNRZWBARRATIES E AR ZESERRE
E51E511,280,0007C( — T —=4F : ) - ARAEA
Rlz Al E S RBIENEEE  REERATALZAER
KPIREERRER RERRE] -

19 Hithfi & E

The Group The Company
EME NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-QmEF —T—=F —E-nmEFE —E-—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BYETT BETT
Available-for-sale debt AT EFFERNAHDE
securities at fair value BSE S
— listed —tm 288,235 289,444 - -
As at 31 December 2014, the Group held corporate bonds and designated RZZE—NF+_A=+—H AEEFELEE

the instruments as available-for-sale debt securities with fair value
changes recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve. The debt securities are issued
by corporate entities with credit quality commensurate with the return as
considered acceptable to the Group.

116 Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited & ZiBE T & SHERAH

% - WIRERMTAKE AT
TEs
TEEERT - CEERBTH
BRRETEE 2 EHIAY -

PAE A 2 T s P R

EEHES > MEARQ
WHZ AR
BBEFERERR



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#& 3R MfsE

20 Trade receivables

Credit terms granted by the Company to customers generally range from
one week to one month. Credit terms offered by other companies of the
Group based on individual commercial terms negotiated with customers.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

20 FEWARRX

ARR R TEF —EHE2—EANEES - A%

EETEMR

Afffe THEEHDANBHEARER

EIE) ERIESESES TN

BEHEHR  REZAHEE - BURANERED

receivables, based on the invoice date is as follows: W
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z2—QmEF =% —E—IOF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT T BT
Less than 1 month P—EA 16,736 11,502 11,977 10,166
1 to 3 months —Z=={@A 3,444 2,324 2,098 1,636
3 to 12 months =Z+_{@A 1,357 1,754 367 834
Over 12 months et —@EA 1,773 2,477 - 10
23,310 18,057 14,442 12,646
The Group’s credit policy is set out in Note 27(a). REE 2 EEBRERM7F27(@)
All the above balances are expected to be recovered within one year and TEHR Rl s —F AR E - W —RSEIRFIR
they are generally covered by customer deposits received from customers HEIRSFTIRE (ZA722) -
(see Note 22).
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due but neither B 780 HA {8 0 #8151 o 5= B 4 AR VE ) BR AU Y FE R IE
individually nor collectively considered as impaired are as follows: RIRRER DTN T -
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z2—QmEF =5 —E-—IOF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT BT
Neither past due nor impaired 7 48 280 B T AR E 14,065 9,623 8,870 7,723
Less than 1 month past due 4,025 2,821 3,138 2,666
1 to 3 months past due 2,549 1,613 2,067 1,502
Over 3 months past due 2,671 4,000 367 755
9,245 8,434 5,572 4,923
23,310 18,057 14,442 12,646
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20

21

22

Trade receivables (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for which there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management considers that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.

Other receivables and prepayments
As at 31 December 2014, included in the balance of HK$44,391,000
(2013: HK$42,072,000) are security tokens of HK$12,470,000 (2013:

HK$10,946,000) purchased in respect of security solution service to
certain companies.

Trade creditors, accounts payable and other payables

20 AR ()

21

WA ERENEEGRERRETPER
B P A EE RO SRR o

%

ElH

CEMEY ENRRENERFRASEBIE, A
B ZEEPNARENBEERLHERI - RIEE
ER EEERS HRERERUEBSAEE
BZEERKDBARE 28R - RBARZFEH
FHERERE -

Hitb BURBAR AN FIR

RZE-—mNE+-_A=+—8 E&HBE
44,391,000 7C ( = F — = 4 : 7 % 42,072,000 7T )
FoBIEAT MEEARRERE T RIRE MR E
HRZ RIS BH12,470,000L( —F—=F : B
10,946,0007T) °

22 BMNIRR - BEFCERHMENARE

The Group The Company
TEE ENE|

2014 2013 2014 2013

—E—QmEF —T—=f —ZT-NF =%

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT BT T BB TFIT

Trade creditors (Note 22(i)) FERBRRR (BT77220)) 9,706 11,267 7,191 7,550
Customer deposits received BERFEE

(Note 22(ii)) (Hiat22(i)) 157,705 160,818 157,705 160,818

Accrued charges and FEEHRASZ &

other payables H A RIS RIE 59,214 58,997 36,867 35,523

Amount due to a subsidiary FETHI B A B 508 = - 19,750 20,311

226,625 231,082 221,513 224,202

(i)  Trade creditors are due within 1 month or on demand.
(ii) Deposits received are monies received from customers before
they are allowed to make trade transactions through the use of the
Group’s systems. Generally, customers are only allowed to incur
transaction charges up to the amount deposited with the Group.
Deposits are refundable to customers on demand.
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23 Provision for long service payments

24

25

23 RERBEERE

The Group The Company
rEE AT

2014 2013 2014 2013

—Z2—QmEF =% —E-—nmEF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT BT T BT

As at 1 January R—HA—H 2,954 2,923 2,679 2,653
Provisions charged to the RIER RGBS

statement of profit or loss 63 31 58 26

As at 31 December R+-A=+—H 3,017 2,954 2,737 2,679

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000
prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Equity-settled share-based transactions

(a) Share option schemes

The Company adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme on 2
August 2000 which was amended on 11 September 2001 and 26
November 2002 respectively, and a Post-IPO share option scheme
on 14 October 2005, whereby the Directors are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors of
any company in the Group, to take up options at consideration of
HK$1.00 per grant to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
can only be exercised after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%) respectively from the commencement of
the trading of the Company’s shares on SEHK being 28 October
2005, and have a duration of 10 years from the date on which the
grant was made. The exercise prices per share for the options are
HK$0.90 and HK$1.25.

24 BERKER

REBRB(EBRG I RBE BRI - AIRB(GE
BREEGDRANEES  RatM B8
Bestal]) - BEeHEABE I X TAT RN TEH
FORIREHE - RIFRESE  EXHREBASHRA
FTEMEH RSN EEBEABSRMHER - MABBA
BUAE A#BE30,000T(ZE—NENA R ABE
25,00070) & EBR - EE A EEL RN SEES
FEE -

LR EEENRDRS
(a) FERefEstEl

PAN]) e = SYAVE il = X8 =D/ NN E 2]
AR B (D RIN T —F A+ —H R
ZEF A HRARBE)  AR-TZRF
TA+HBERNER DB EARE S - 5
It ERERRNEEAFAREEE (BEAEH
ETER AR ER)E N A REA QR B0
Wt - RERSHRKEEEL00T - FRERK
TR T ELF A AR R — AR A E B AR -

AR B R N B HR A AT B AR R R BB O A
RZZZRF AT NABARRARHEBE
EEMTESRI; T @A —+HEA R
=+RXERR - HRAIDRIFTEEH25% - 60% K
100% H) B AR HE < BB ARREEN B 2 B 3 A R
ERREITF - BRENERITEEREK090T
K BHE1.257T ©
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25 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued) 25 IRELENRNRS (&)

(a) FBR#ESHEI(E)

(a) Share option schemes (continued)

The share options granted under the Post-IPO share option scheme
vest after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) and 36 months
(100%) respectively from date of grant and then exercisable within
a period of 10 years. The subscription amount payable in respect of
each share upon the exercise of an option shall be determined by
the board of directors and shall be not less than the greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK’s daily quotations sheet on the date, which must be a
business day, of the written offer of such option (the “Date of
Grant”);

(i) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

On 16 March 2009, the above Share Option Schemes were
discontinued and replaced by a “Share Award Scheme” (Note
25(b)). However, share options previously awarded under the Share
Option Schemes remain valid and subject to the same terms and
conditions.

The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme 2014 on 9 May
2014, whereby options will be granted to eligible persons, including
Directors, employees, consultants, business associates or advisers
as the Board of the Company may identify from time to time
(“Grantees”), entitling them to subscribe for shares of the Company,
subject to acceptance of the Grantees and the payment of HK$1.00
by each of the Grantees upon acceptance of the options. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company.

The share options granted under the Share Option Scheme 2014
vest after 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 36 months (75%)
and 48 months (100%) respectively from date of grant and then
exercisable within a period of 10 years. The subscription amount
payable in respect of each share upon the exercise of an option shall
be determined by the board of directors and shall be not less than
the greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK'’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of such
option; and

(i) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK'’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of such option.
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25 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(a) Share option schemes (continued)

25 URESENROXR S (&)

(a) FBR#ESHEI(E)

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the () T XHESF A AR T RS AR A 161 & A

year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical

delivery of shares:

W

B it TEBBREARNEY T EE

Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
IAHAE BERMG BRENSHEH
Options granted to directors:
ERTESNERE:
—on 19 March 2007 415,243 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
—-R=ZEE+F=A+ 1A and 36 months (100%) +4
from 19 March 2007
BT +F=A+NAH
#BEF121E A (25%) « 2418 A (60%)
K368 A(100%)
—on 30 June 2014 9,400,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—RZE—WFSA=TH 36 months (75%) and +4
48 months (100%)
from 30 June 2014
B_ZT—WF A="TH
HBET121E A(25%) ~ 2418 B (50%) *
361 A (75%) & 481 A (100%)
Options granted to employees:
ERTFRERENBRAE
—on 14 October 2005 2,155,123 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RZETRF+A+HMAE and 36 months (100%) +4
from 28 October 2005
BE-ZETRFTA=TNA
#BEF121E A (25%) « 241 A (60%)
K368 A (100%)
—on 19 March 2007 2,020,863 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
—-RZETEF=A+NH and 36 months (100%) +4
from 19 March 2007
BE-ZTTEF=A+NH
HBET121E A(25%) ~ 2418 B (60%)
K368 F(100%)
—on 14 April 2008 619,509 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
—-RZZEENFMA+MA and 36 months (100%) +4

from 14 April 2008
—ZZ)\FMA+IHH
HEEF121E A (25%) « 2418 A (60%)
K361 A(100%)
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25 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(a) Share option schemes (continued)
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
delivery of shares: (continued)

25 URESENROXR S (&)

(a) BBRRFERHEI(E)
(i) N SCELDEE A AR T O R SR ) R K K AR
Al gt TARBREARDEY S REE
W - ()

Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
THA¥A SRR BRENSNEH
—on 30 June 2014 2,800,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—RIZZE—NFEARA=TH 36 months (75%) T+
and 48 months (100%)
from 30 June 2014
BE=Z—WFARA=TH
HEET121E A (25%) ~ 2418 A (50%) *
361E A (75%) K481 A (100%)
17,410,738

(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

(i) BBAREROBIR R hnEFITTEEL T

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
IREF 91T EE BIRERE IEFITEE EREEE
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
BT FB& PRI T
Qutstanding as at 1 January  #»—A—HHEEKITE 1.30 5,211 1.26 12,141
Granted during the year FRFEH 1.90 12,200 - -
Exercised during the year FRITE 1.29 (2,751) 1.22 (6,702)
Forfeited during the year FRRI 1.25 (2) 1.22 (228)
Outstanding as at R+—A=+—8
31 December HARITEE 1.80 14,658 1.30 5211
Exercisable as at w+—A=+—8”
31 December AIT{E 2,458 5211

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2014 had exercise
prices ranging from HK$1.01 to HK$1.90 (2013: ranging
from HK$1.01 to HK$1.42) and weighted average remaining
contractual life ranging from 1 year to 10 years respectively
(2013: ranging from 2 years to 5 years).
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25 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued) 25 IRELENRNRS (&)

(b) BR1DEEREHE

(b) Share award scheme

On 16 March 2009 (“the adoption date”), the Board adopted a
Share Award Scheme (“the Scheme”) as a means of rewarding
and retaining employees at the grade of assistant manager and
above within the Group and to encourage senior employees to have,
through the award of the Company’s shares under the Scheme, a
direct financial interest in the long term success of the Company. A
Trust (“the Trustee”) was set up for the purpose of administering the
Scheme.

The Scheme comprises two parts, Part 1 and Part 2. Under Part
1, eligible employees receive an offer to purchase the Company’s
shares (“Shares”) from the Trustee of the Scheme at discounted
prices and subject to a lock-up period as the eligible staff may
choose. Under Part 2, eligible employees received an offer to be
granted by the Trustee Shares at no consideration but subject to a
one-year lock-up period.

Dividends on those awarded shares which have already been
allocated to the awardees will be distributed to the awardees. The
Trustee is entitled to keep the portion of dividends declared on those
awarded shares which have not yet been allocated (or which relate
to Shares awarded to a terminated staff but for which the terminated
staff has ceased to be entitled to these Shares or dividends on
them) and in any case are held on trust for future awardees under
the Scheme. Such dividends so accumulated can be utilised by
the Trustee, subject to the written instructions of the Company, for
purchasing Shares on the market for the purposes of the Scheme or
in making other payments permitted by the trust deed.

The total number of all Shares purchased by the Trustee under the
Scheme must not be 10% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the adoption date (being 77,830,605 Shares) unless
the Board otherwise decides.

The Scheme is valid for 10 years from the adoption date (i.e. 16
March 2009) or until such other date as the Board may decide. On
19 November 2013, the Board resolved to terminate the Scheme
and on 25 March 2014, the Board further endorsed the early release
to eligible employees of all the locked-up shares. All the awarded
shares were vested immediately and were transferred to all eligible
employees by early June 2014. The trust was wound up by the end
of June 2014.

RZZEZNF=A+ARB(RKAH])  EFg
BT —IRR i SRR B (TRHE)) - R REEE &
BRAKEREREHHIA LEEOES - I
FERRIEAARBARARNBE=RES - &
BEEARANEMRDELHZEERY B
& o ARFRE AEEAERLEFR(ETEAD -

FHEImmAER D AR - BN —BPy R &b o IR
BE—Hn  AERELHES HELN 7K
FEREAFAZEABEART RN (T ]) -
WRAEMBE T AR N LSRR - RiF
E_mn  AEMBINES BB WER
AARZRERBRD - AR - FEEHR
PR

EENE T EEBE BN EB IR T
ERERDE  IRABRRECHEBRNE
IREDARD RS (KRR TR I EEEDN
BiDEENRS  MEBRLZERETEER
WERZ S I D SRR 8) - WHMERIER TR
BB BRMNEREBEUEETARE - X5t
AR BRI Bty A REHEBLE - AR5 £
REFEIBERD - HXEFEROMH AN EAL
3 AZARBEMIESIFARIR -

BRIFEZERITRT  BRIZEARIETEBE
R D BT S RBAA R BRI B B 21T
AN 10% 85 A = (BN77,830,605/% /% 17) °

HEARMBHA=_TTAF= A+ 8) &5t
BHHL0F KAEEEEFAALREMNE M B E
ke RZT—=F+—A+NB BBEFREK
IEETE YR =T —NF=A=+RB#E—$ 8
EREEREBIRMNMBBREBRERD - 28
BV BN B — T — NN AR EE T
FiE6EKREES - ZEEN 2T —MEXAKA
R -
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25 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued) 25 IRELENRNRS (&)
(b) Share award scheme (continued) (b) RDEEREETEI(H)
(i)  Movements in the number of awarded shares and their related () HERGKHEEB REBBAFHRATFENZEEH
average fair value were as follows: AR
Number Number
of awarded of awarded
shares shares
RERDEE RENR (2B
2014 2013
e ki —T=F
As at 1 January ®n—A—H 8,422,481 8,373,130
Vested izl (8,422,481) (2,662,244)
Awarded =45 - 2,711,595
As at 31 December R+=-—BA=+—H
(Note) (Hizt) - 8,422,481
Note: Hiat -
As at 31 December 2013, the average fair value per share for Part 1 and RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8  F8E—HPRE
Part 2 of the Scheme ranged from HK$0.26 to HK$1.48 and HK$1.34 ZHBHNBFRTEERTED B AEE0.26 T E B
respectively. The average fair value per share of the awarded shares is 1.48TC KB 134T - BEIRGHOEBRFHAFE
the cost to the Company which is based on the closing price at the award BARRRMRA - EIREE B KR EkiREE
date or at appropriate discounts applied. i R iEe
(i) Details of the shares held for the Scheme as at 31 December (i) RZZE—NWF+ZA=1+—08 - BirglFE
2014 are set out below: R FFIBE ST
Number of Number of
shares held for shares held for
the Scheme the Scheme
BT EIEE RETEIRAE
R & E HIR 2
2014 2013
—Z2—NF =%
As at 1 January w—A—H 8,422,481 19,278,170
Purchased A - 2,300,000
Vested B (8,422,481) (2,662,244)
Disposed He - (10,493,445)
As at 31 December Rt+—A=+—8 - 8,422,481
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26 Capital and reserves

(@) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing of each
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out as below:

26 EXKf#HE

() ERAE2ED
AEEFY R FRERADOGAEROERET

ISORY Tt

SR - NRREL R

EFERMEEFERIIOT

B B F

The Company AT
Shares held
for Share
Share Share Award Capital Retained
capital premium Scheme reserve profits Total
RRGBED
TEEE
A& RDERE g% EA GG REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
As at 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—F—H 156,718 122,394 (15,031) 4,839 45,286 314,206
Dividends approved in respect of FEEEHEREWF12)
the previous year (Note 12) - - - - (54,328) (54,328)
Issue of shares (Note 26(b)(ii)) BRI (HEE2600)0) 1,340 8,723 - (1,867) - 81%
Equity-settled share-based transactions  LARRHELEERIRH X5 - - - 2,550 - 2,550
Disposal of unallocated shares HERD BRI - - 7,464 - 8,804 16,268
Changes in shares held for share AR BRI EEEN
award scheme B in & E) - - (2,828) - - (2,828)
Vesting of awarded shares BRI EGE - - 2,173 (510) (45) 1,618
Lapse of share options BEARIE R - - - (58) 58 -
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE 2 E 545 - - - - 80,179 80,179
Dividends declared in respect of the AEFEREREN
current year (Note 12) B (HEE12) - - - - (31,525) (31,525)
As at 31 December 2013 and R-E-=f+-A=+-A
1 January 2014 k=Z-N&E-F—H 158,058 131,117 (8,222) 4,954 48,429 334,336
Dividends approved in respect of the P EEB#ER B (H212)
previous year (Note 12) - - - - (49,115) (49,115)
Issue of shares (Note 26(b)(ii)) BATRG (BTE226(0)(1) 4,152 205 - (812) - 3,545
Equity-settled share-based transactions  ABRHELEEMRHZ 5 - - - 3,821 - 3,821
Transition to no-par value regime RZZ-MF=A=H
on 3 March 2014 (Note 26(b)(i)) BEZEEEROEE
(Hz2600)) 131,322 (131,322 - - - -
Vesting of awarded shares BERNDGE - - 8,222 (6,548) 2,001 3,675
Lapse of share options B AR LR - - - (1) 1 -
Total comprehensive income for the year NEE 2 EREE - - - - 97,463 97,463
Dividends declared in respect of the AEEDREREM
current year (Note 12) k8 (Hit12) - - - = (28,546) (28,546)
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z-MFE+=A=+-H 293,532 - - 1,414 70,233 365,179
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26 Capital and reserves (continued) 26 EXRKf#E (&)

(b) Share capital
(i) Authorised and issued share capital

(b) BA

() FEEREBITRAE

2014 2013
—E-MEF —T—=F
Number of Number of
shares Amounts shares Amounts
RBEE -} %L 4= ]
in’000 HK$’000 in"000 HK$'000
T BT T T BET T
Authorised: (Note 1) EE  (ME)
Ordinary shares of FRE(EE0.207TH)
HK$0.20 each (Note 2) LB (ATF2) - - 1,250,000 250,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZER - OR&TR
fully paid: b §
As at 1 January ®—HA—AH 790,290 158,058 783,588 156,718
Shares issued under share  1RIEFERRIEET2IZE1THY
option schemes R 2,751 4,152 6,702 1,340
Transition to no-par regime  RZ-ZZ—NF=H=H
on 3 March 2014 (Note 3) @BEZEmEERD
HIE (H:#3) - 131,322 - -
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 793,041 293,532 790,290 158,058

Note 1: Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
which commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of
authorised share capital no longer exists.

Note 2: In accordance with section 135 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company’s shares no
longer have a par or nominal value with effect from 3 March
2014. There is no impact on the number of shares in issue or
the relative entitlement of any of the members as a result of
this transition.

Note 3: In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of the Schedule 11 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), any amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account on 3 March 2014 has become part of
the Company’s share capital. Accordingly, HK$131,322,000
has been transferred from the share premium account to the
share capital of the Company on 3 March 2014.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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26 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) Share capital (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Shares issued under share option schemes

For the period from 1 January 2014 to 2 March 2014,
share options were exercised to subscribe for 162,000
(year ended 2013: 6,702,000) ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of HK$192,000 (year ended
2013: HK$8,196,000) of which HK$32,000 (year ended
2013: HK$1,340,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of HK$160,000 (year ended 2013: HK$6,856,000)
was credited to the share premium account in accordance
with section 48B of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32). Capital reserve of HK$45,000 (year ended
2013: HK$1,867,000) has been transferred correspondingly to
the share premium account in according with policy set out in
Note 1(p)(ii).

For the period from 3 March 2014 to 31 December 2014, share
options were exercised to subscribe for 2,589,000 ordinary
shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$3,353,000
of which all was credited to share capital in accordance with
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Capital
reserve of HK$767,000 has been transferred correspondingly
to the share capital account in according with policy set out in
Note 1(p)(ii).

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end
of the reporting period:

26 BEXRf#HE (H)

(b) BA(%&)

(ii)

RIBE R BIRTRG

—E-NFE-A-HE-_FT-WNE=Z/F=
A - BRERAE AREAEBCR BHEND
F32FF48BIELAE 192,000 (B E =
T—=F|FFE : HB%8196,0007T) I
BITEERE - RE162000 (HE2=F
—ZFEFE ¢ 6,702,0000% ) AR A E R
f& - HAAERE32,000 (B2 — =41t
FJE  AB¥1,340,0007T) T AR - BRFEE
#160,0007T (HE_T—=F L5 : B
6,856,0007T ) Al AR i (B HR - & A
BIAS 0007 (HE—E—=F I FE : B
#1,867,0007T ) BARIE M AT 1(0)() FRE R
RSB ER BB -

—E-NE=ZAZRE-_Z-NFE+_A
=+—8 - BREREAREBHEB(RA
6191 ) 28 622 F LA 7 # 3,353,000 7T 9 X (B
1TEEE R - REE2,589,000 AN A B E il
g - 2EEARE - EAREBAEET767,000
TCEARBRAT 1 (p) (i) P 8 K SR AE PR B 2= R
ARERF o

(iii) RBMERRKRE PR ARITEEREAEK -

2014 2013

—E—IF —T—=F

Exercise price Number Number

Exercise period 1T1E5 TEE =] =

14 October 2005 to ZETRFETATMBERE HK$1.25 727,346 2,155,123
13 October 2015 —ZT-hA&TA+=H 1,257

19 March 2007 to —ERHF=R+NEE HK$1.42 1,401,351 2,436,106
18 March 2017 —E—+tF=A+N\H 1427

14 April 2008 to TR \FNA+MNEZRE HK$1.01 329,254 619,509
13 April 2018 - N\FHNA+=H EEE1.017T

30 June 2014 to ZE-MFERA=THE HK$1.90 12,200,000 -
29 June 2024 —ZToNEXAZ+TAH 11,907

14,657,951 5,210,738
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26 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share premium
account and the capital redemption reserve was governed
by sections 48B and 49H of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) respectively. In accordance
with the transitional provisions set out in section 37 of Schedule
11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
on 3 March 2014 any amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account and the capital redemption reserve has
become part of the company’s share capital (see Note 26 (b)(i)).
The use of share capital as from 3 March 2014 is governed by
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

(ii) Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options and awarded shares granted
to directors and employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share based
payments in Note 1(p)(ii) and (iii).

(iii) Shares held for share award scheme
The Shares held for Share Award Scheme is the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs for
purchase of shares under the Share Award Scheme, in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 1(p)(iii).

(iv) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 1(q).

(v) Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale debt securities held at the end
of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in Note 1(i).

(d) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$70,233,000 (2013: HK$48,429,000). After the end of the
reporting period, the directors proposed a final dividend of HK 4.9
cents per ordinary share (2013: HK 6.2 cents per share), amounting
to HK$38,859,000 (2013: HK$48,998,000). The directors also
proposed a special dividend of HK 3.7 cents per ordinary share
(2013: Nil), amounting to HK$29,343,000. These dividends have
not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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26 BEXRf#HE (H)

(c)

(d)

HEOMER AR
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26 Capital and reserves (continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the
foreseeable future. The Group has no external borrowing at the end
of the reporting period.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed
with due regard to the capital management objectives of the Group.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

27 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risk arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are limited by the
Group’s financial management policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables
and investments in debt securities. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

When registering as a subscriber, a customer is automatically
assigned with a credit limit based on the amount of its deposit or
bank guarantee and is normally given credit periods ranging from
one day to one month. Credit terms offered by other companies of
the Group are based on individual commercial terms negotiated with
customers. The amount of deposit is determined on a customer-by-
customer basis, depending on its usage of the Company’s services.
Generally, if a customer reaches or exceeds its credit limit before the
normal billing cycle, an ad hoc bill will be issued to the customers for
payment by bank direct debit. However, if a customer is in default of
payment for whatever reason, its account is automatically suspended
from operation until all outstanding charges have been fully settled.
For that reason, customers may also, and often do, place deposits
with the Company from time to time to cover their charges.

There is, however, no credit policy for the Company’s ad hoc
customers who are required to pay the relevant charges (including
service charges, service centre handling fees and Government fees)
in full when using the Company over-the-counter services.

The Company does not have a general provisioning policy in respect
of trade receivables. Specific trade receivables considered not
recoverable will be written-off.

26 BEXRf#HE (H)

(e) EXRER

AEEEREANTE A RRRENEEFER
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27 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Investments in debt securities are normally in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, issued by corporate with
sound credit standing (Note 19). Given their high credit standing,
management does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations. Nevertheless, the Company’s financial advisor
monitors the situation and will notify the Company of any change. In
addition, the Investment Committee undertakes annual reviews of
the Company’s exposures.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk from trade receivables is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer
rather than the industry or country in which the customers operate
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period, 0.2% (2013: 1.1%) and 15.6%
(2013: 8.1%) of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have any
significant concentration of credit risk other than those arising from
investments in debt securities. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the statement of financial position. The Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
Note 20.

Liquidity risk

All cash management of the Group, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and raising of loans, if needed, to
cover expected cash demands, are managed centrally by the
Company. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s current liabilities of
HK$231,514,000, including trade creditors, accounts payable and
other payables of HK$226,625,000 as indicated in Note 22, were
due to be repaid during the next financial year or repayable upon
demand. The Group will address the short-term liquidity requirement
inherent in this contractual maturity date with internal resources.
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27 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from investments
in fixed income debt securities (Note 19) and floating rate bank
balances, which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately HK$475,000 (2013:
HK$614,000). The fair value reserve in the consolidated equity
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$4,325,000 (2013:
HK$4,214,000) in response.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those fixed income debt
securities held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In respect of
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
bank balances held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2013 for cash flow interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
available-for-sale debt securities denominated in United States
dollars and Renminbi, and investments in PRC incorporated entities.
Given the fact that the exchange rates of United States dollars and
Hong Kong dollars are currently pegged, management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency risk associated with
the investment in available-for-sale debt securities denominated
in United States dollars. The Group has not hedged the foreign
exchange exposure in relation to its investments in PRC incorporated
entities and Renminbi denominated debt securities.

27 REAREERLDFEGE

(c)

(d)
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27 Financial risk management and fair values (continued) 27 cRBRAREERATE(E)

(e) Fair value measurement

(e) DEEE

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement categorises fair value
measurements into a three-level hierarchy. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technigue as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

(BAHBRELADEIR —[AFENE A
FEHBD AZEER - ATVESBERHAS
SE LTS EITAR RS AR TR RS
TR -

F—RAEE: EERE-AHABRGEIR
FERBREEXBAENERTIHMNAREH
ERE)HENAFE

EMEE  ERE - RBABEBIREE
EHFE-ANTERGARE) AU ARER
EATABRGH AR ENATE - T
B A BESET SRS ARR

F=MGE  EREATIBERHARE
EHOAFE

At 31 December 2014, the available-for-sale debt securities held RZZE—NFE+_A=+—H ' x&EBZHENA
by the Group are carried at their fair value (see Note 19). These HEEEBES DR ATENNR(EZNZFIS) - B

instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described
above.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, there were no
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy. The Group’s policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

All other financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2014

HeRmTAB AR FEBRNE & -

S

R =FRIFE-NFF+ZA=+—HIE

FE - AVESEEALEESR - AEEOBRER
RAFESRZ MELBROMERER SR -

i

T-MER-F-=F+-A=+—B

FHEMMBEERABENARSBEEELAFEL

and 2013. BmERDA -
28 Commitments 28 EiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEXREE

(i) Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2014
not provided for in the financial statements amounted to
HK$1,821,000 (2013: HK$203,000). They are mainly in
respect of the Group’s computer equipment.

(i) As at 31 December 2014, the Group had an outstanding
commitment of cash investment in /& FE 5@ 4 & §8 F 17 8238
ZAMR AR (“U-Link"), a PRC associate, for the amount of
RMB4,350,000.
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28 Commitments (continued)

(b) Operating leases

28 Ak (#)

(b) BEHE

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BB A RELSEHEE  RARKEMNREDE
operating leases in respect of property rentals are payable as follows: HeMReEeT :

2014 2013
—F—mF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within one year —%FR 669 502
More than one year but within five years —FERBREFA 495 470
1,164 972

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

29 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions:

(a)

(b)

Recurring transactions

(i) On 18 June 2013, the Company disposed its 25% equity
interest in Telstra Technology Services (Hong Kong) Limited
(“TTS”). During the prior period up to 17 June 2013, facilities
management expenses of HK$4,036,000 were paid and
payable to TTS.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group provided
security solution services to TAL Apparel Limited (“TAL") and
generated revenue of HK$280,000 (2013: Nil). The Group
also generated HK$94,000 (2013: HK$96,000) from TAL for
providing electronic front-end solutions in processing certain
government related documents.

Non-recurring transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group provided
4PL matching platform project service to U-Link, at the amount of
HK$1,007,000 (2013: HK$904,000). As at 31 December 2014, the
amount outstanding by U-Link was HK$1,722,000 (31 December
2013: HK$1,997,000).

AEBRBLZHERRZEYE - BO—RD
TRE—E2=F YAREEEE  ERSER
BRI AA R - ERBEOBTEEIAER -

29 EXBBALRS

MZSUBRREMBEHRENRZ S MR -
BIRETTATERBEBMALRS

&

(a) REETHRS
() RZZE—=FXATNE KRFHEMR
# Telstra Technology Services (Hong Kong)
Limited ([TTS 1) 25% %1 - BE - T — =4
NATEBIESE - BN REMTTSHRE
BB E RB¥E4,036,0007T ©

(iy BE-Z-—0OF+-_A=+— Eiiﬁ
ZJSEIﬁ%ﬁ%%z‘iﬁfﬂ@j@mu)}ﬂ

L ARSI EE B 280,000t (=T —=
o) o 2!S‘£lﬁﬁk1?§ﬁi¥%$ﬂziﬁﬁ%§

S E TR AR T R TALERS
94,0007T(=Z—=4 : B%96,0007T) °

SHE%

(b) KEETHRS
HE-Z-NWFE+-A=+—HIEFE K&EHE
mLEEEBREREN AR FEEE RS - RE
A 1,007,000t (= F— =4 : B1904,000
L) e RZE—NFE+-_A=+—8 LEESR

AR R RIEAAEE1,722,000T (ZE—=4F
+=-—A=+—H8 : #%1,997,0007T) °
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29 Material related party transactions (continued) 29 ERFEBALRS (&)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) XEEBAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts TEEEAENES (BIEEAARRRMNITESI
paid to the Company’s executive directors as disclosed in Note 9 and HWRIE(EM ) REME TR HEE XMH
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 10, is as HIE(EHFIONMT -
follows:
2014 2013
—E—NF —=—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Short-term employee benefits RHEERET 15,725 14,604
Post-employment benefits RIFREBIEF 85 75
Equity compensation benefits R A R T 2,487 2,145
18,297 16,824
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 6(a)). e ezt Al BEKA (A F6()) »
30 Contingent liabilities 30 XBEAE
Pursuant to the terms of the contracts with the Government, the Group BIEBEBRFT YNGR XEBREZLERTA
has obtained three bank guarantees totalling HK$2,647,000 (2013: B RITES=ZAERITIERA HBE2 647,000 (=
HK$2,647,000) and two performance bonds of HK$656,000 (2013: one T—Z4F : B#2647,0007T) K MIEREHERBE
performance bond of HK$570,000) from banks for the due performance 656,00070 (=T —=%F : —HE X ERB 570,000
of the contracts by the Group. The bank guarantees and performance T0) © SRITHER KB LERIAS £735%3,813,0007t (=
bond are secured by a charge over deposit totalling HK$3,813,000 (2013: T—Z 4 B#3,718,0007T) F IR E AR -

HK$3,718,000).

31 Non-adjusting events after the reporting period 31 HEPERARFAENEIE
After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final RERE  EERREREE_ZT—NF+=-A
dividend of HK 4.9 cents per share (2013: HK 6.2 cents per share) for T+ —HIEFENRAREGRIOBUL(ZZE—=
the year ended 31 December 2014, amounting to HK$38,859,000 (2013: F: BRe.2B) - £HE38,859,000(ZF—=
HK$48,998,000). The directors also proposed a special dividend of & ##548,998,0007T ) © B F I F K R AR
HK 3.7 cents per ordinary share (2013: Nil), amounting to EEREBRITEN(ZE—=F &) SHBE
HK$29,343,000. These dividends have not been recognised as a liability 29,343,0007T ° ZERERMEPHRLAERRALE -

at the end of the reporting period.
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32 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the annual
accounting period ended 31 December 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

Annual improvements to 1 July 2014
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

Annual improvements to 1 July 2014

HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 11,
Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations
Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortisation

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

1 January 2017

To be determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements, but
additional disclosures may need to be made in the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation
from the company’s first financial year commencing after 3 March 2014
(i.e. the company’s financial year which began on 1 January 2015) in
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes
in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements
in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has concluded that
the impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only affect the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements.
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E—NF —ET—=F —E-C—fF —E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT T BT BT
Results E35
(year ended 31 December) (BE2+=-HA=+—H
ILFE)
Turnover e 226,293 230,006 232,383 206,176 216,091
Profit from operations LR 83,646 96,105 91,792 74,922 85,581
Share of results of associates — Fr{GHE& A B 24& 6,888 120 2,973 5,841 (3,989)
Share of result of joint venture P& &N T4 (409) (2,750) (391) - -
Impairment loss on interest  REEE QA RIER
in associate RIEETE (3,000) - - - -
Impairment loss on interest NEERAIERZ
in joint venture RIEETE (1,280) - - - -
Profit before taxation BB AR A 85,845 93,475 94,374 80,763 81,592
Taxation RIE (11,662) (13,027) (14,197) (10,698) (12,333)
Profit for the year KE i 74,183 80,448 80,177 70,065 69,259
Attributable to: LA AL
Equity shareholders of the AATIREREEA
Company 74,183 80,511 80,262 70,065 69,259
Non-controlling interest IEE IS R T - (63) (85) - -
Profit for the year INEEHF 74,183 80,448 80,177 70,065 69,259
Assets and Liabilities EERERE
(as at 31 December) (R+=ZA=+—H)
Total non-current assets ERBEELRE 142,094 147,082 155,805 152,961 147,432
Total current assets REEERE 469,980 463,417 460,168 422,637 414,937
Total assets BEER 612,074 610,499 615,973 575,598 562,369
Total non-current liabilities B BB (3,432) (4,007) (4,456) (4,429) (6,431)
Total current liabilities mEBERE (231,514) (233,536) (252,547) (230,363) (219,657)
Total liabilities afEesE (234,946) (237,543) (257,003) (234,792) (226,088)
Net assets BEFE 377,128 372,956 358,970 340,806 336,281
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Investor Relations and Key Dates I & ZZ KR EE A Hf

The Company encourages two-way communication with both its institutional
and individual investors. Extensive information about the Company’s activities
is provided in the Annual Report. There is regular communication with
institutional and individual investors. Enquiries from individuals on matters
relating to their shareholdings and the business of the Company are welcome

and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Financial Calendar

Closure of Register of Members:

— to ascertain shareholders entitled to attend and
vote at the 2015 Annual General Meeting

—to ascertain shareholders qualified for the Final
Dividend and Special Dividend

2015 Annual General Meeting
Final Dividend and Special Dividend

Payment Date

Listings

6-8 May 2015
(both days inclusive)

14-18 May 2015
(both days inclusive)

8 May 2015

On or about 26 May 2015

The Company’s shares have been listed on Main Board of The Stock of

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 28 October 2005.

Annual Report 2014

This Annual Report 2014, in both English and Chinese, is now available in
printed form and on the Company’s website at www.tradelink.com.hk.

Stock Code
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited — 00536

Registered Office

11/F & 12/F, Tower B
Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 2599 1600
Fax: +852 2506 0188

Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2862 8628

Fax: +852 2865 0990
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Investor Relations and Key Dates IR &% KR EE A Hf

Investor Relations

Ms. TSANG Kit Yee, Iris

Assistant Manager (Investor Relations and Corporate Communications)
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited

11/F & 12/F, Tower B, Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2161 4370

Fax: +852 2506 0188

Email: ir@tradelink.com.hk

Website

www.tradelink.com.hk
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In case of inconsistence between the English and Chinese versions, the English

version shall prevail to the extent of such inconsistency.
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